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The evolution of our trust

This year ’s annual repor t
reflects on the evolution of
the trust as we welcomed a
new chief executive and her
team.
We h a v e c o n t i n u e d t o d r a w o n t h e
successes and lessons learned
from the last two years by fur ther
developing our teaching and learning
Mastery Rubric, devising our
knowledge curriculum, developing
our organisational culture and
operational strategy whilst working
with our people to listen and learn.
Right at the heart of our evolution
this year was securing new ways
of working through meaningful,
purposeful collaboration to secure
benefits for staff and pupils.
This priority gathered pace
throughout the year following the
trial of a new cluster model with
three of our secondary academies in
the Midlands region. Through regular
well-planned and tightly focused
meetings and coaching sessions,
we were able to bring together a
wealth of leadership exper tise across
three senior and middle leadership
teams. The impact of such purposeful
collaboration was realised when the
GCSE results rose significantly for
students at these three academies.
The benefits of collaboration reach
far beyond one set of GCSE results;
it is the impact on leaders at every
level in honing their skills and
knowledge that brings the most
benefit. Quick fixes never secure
sustainable impact, but developing
people does.

We c o n t i n u e t o n u r t u r e a g r e a t
organisational culture by developing
our people, and this was a key focus
f o r u s l a s t y e a r . We a r e g r a t e f u l t o
hundreds of staff who so openly
shared their views and ideas as
we embarked on our ‘big culture
c o n v e r s a t i o n ’, b u t i t h a s n ’ t s t o p p e d
there. Listening and responding to
so many views across our regions
means we have to consider how much
more we can empower individuals
and groups to embed a culture of
r e c o g n i t i o n a c r o s s E - A C T. A c u l t u r e
that is even more inclusive and
one where people’s aspirations and
values are woven into the fabric of
our aims as a trust.
Last year the decision to remove
per formance-related pay was a
l a n d m a r k m o m e n t f o r E - A C T. B y
removing pay from our appraisal
and coaching conversations, we
want the resulting transparent and
honest discussions to help all staff
celebrate what they do well and
feel able to ask for help to improve.
We a r e p l e a s e d w i t h t h e p o s i t i v e
feedback we have received from staff
so far and we will continue to devise
training and coaching sessions with
everyone next year as par t of our
People Development Plan.
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Celebrating our people also means
recognising our many unsung heroes.
This year ’s annual repor t pays tribute
to some of our staff and pupils whose
perseverance, thoughtfulness and
daily commitment to doing the right
thing, keep our academies safe and
create great oppor tunities for their
success. The case studies in ‘The
year in review’ are truly inspiring for
us all.
The educational performance of our
trust this year must be celebrated.
The tremendous hard work of staff
and pupils secured our best-ever
results at key stage 4 and key
stage 5, and the recognition of
Heartlands Academy in Birmingham
as the sixth best secondary school
in the country for progress and
the highest per forming sponsored
academy. The shift we have seen
in our primary results this year
shows the really strong progress our
children are making. With seven of
our primary academies exceeding
the national average key stage 2
combined measure of reading, writing
and mathematics, we have the
oppor tunity to share best practice
more widely next year and help all
our primaries to aim to exceed the
national average.

The impact we are seeing in raising
pupil achievement through great
teaching, innovative curricula and
leadership excellence has been
transformational for our trust.
We h a v e t o h a r n e s s t h i s i n a l l o u r
academies next year so that the gap
between our highest and lowest
per forming academies can reduce
quickly.
This year we invested in our first
ever trip for an entire year group, our
Ye a r 5 p u p i l s . T h e o v e r w h e l m i n g l y
positive response of parents and
pupils to a residential trip to the Isle
of Wight UK Sailing Academy reminds
us of the importance of learning
beyond the classroom. Learning to
be away from home, being team
players and becoming more confident
in water through the water spor ts
programme has provided our pupils
with skills and experience they will
remember for many years.
The impact on children’s mental
health and well-being from being
outside, experiencing new things
with different friendship groups in
a safe and suppor tive environment
is an important part of our work
in supporting the mental health of
all our children. Since it star ted
in 2017, our Mental Health First
A i d ( M H FA ) p r o g r a m m e h a s t r a i n e d
over 1,000 staff to support young
people’s mental health, and we have
established our first mental health
hub for pupils in one of our Bristol
academies this year.

We a l s o w e l c o m e d t h r e e n e w
academies to the E-ACT family this
year: Royton and Crompton Academy
in Oldham, Bourne End Academy
in Buckinghamshire and Badock’s
Wo o d i n B r i s t o l . We l o o k f o r w a r d
to seeing these academies and their
communities develop as part of our
trust.
Par t of our evolution this year was
the appointment of a new chief
executive and Executive Leadership
Te a m t o t a k e u s i n t o t h e n e x t p h a s e
of our transformational journey at
E - A C T. We h o p e a s y o u r e a d t h i s
year ’s annual repor t that you will be
proud of ever yone’s achievements
and that you will look ahead with
excitement to 2019 and our Opening
Minds, Opening Doors strategy: one
E - A C T, O p e n i n g M i n d s a n d O p e n i n g
Doors for staff, for pupils, for our
communities.
M i c h a e l We m m s
C h a i r o f t h e B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s
Jane Millward
Chief Executive Officer
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Evolving how we teach

E-ACT’s Master y Rubric is
the trust’s vision for high
quality teaching and learning.
It is our shared pedagogical
language, guiding and
supporting all our
conversations, evaluations
and developmental work
around teaching.
Our rubric is the route-map of
E-ACT’s teacher development ,
ar ticulating our professional
development pathway to mastery and
beyond.
There are five progression levels
outlined in the rubric. Once a
teacher has demonstrated evidence
of mastery in their practice, they
are encouraged to push themselves
forward by experimenting with
strategies to transform their practice
even fur ther.
As lesson observations may not
always be the best proxy for quality
of learning, the Mastery Rubric
is also designed to take a more
judicious, long term view of how
pupil learning is planned, delivered
and assessed.
It is through our Mastery Rubric that
we aim to continue to Open Minds
and Open Doors for our pupils and
staff.
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Learning outside the classroom

This year, ever y single one of
o u r Ye a r 5 p u p i l s w a s o f f e r e d
a place on our residential
water spor ts programme on
the Isle of Wight, without
charge to their families.
Through our Think Big residentials
in partnership with the UK Sailing
Academy (UKSA), over 700 E-ACT
pupils from across the country
were given the oppor tunity to
visit a different par t of the world,
try something new and develop
important life skills.
For many of our pupils, this was the
first time they had been far away
from home, tried water spor ts or
even seen the sea.
“I learned that I don’t have to be
scared and that I am braver than I
t h i n k .”
J a m i e , Ye a r 5 p u p i l
Funded centrally by the trust,
over the course of the three-day
residential trip, pupils improved
their confidence in the water as they
tried out activities such as kayaking,
paddle-boarding, dinghy sailing and
keel boating.
As well as providing exciting
new experiences, our Think Big
residentials also focused on building
skills for life around communication,
decision making, teamwork, selfbelief, determination and resilience.
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Tr u s t e e s ’ r e p o r t

The trustees present their
annual repor t together with
the financial statements
and auditor ’s repor t of the
charitable company for the
year 1 September 2018 to
31 August 2019.
The annual repor t serves the
purposes of both the trustees’
repor t and a director ’s repor t under
company law.

17,819 pupils
More than 90 different
languages are spoken
as a first language
across the trust

During the financial year, the
academy trust operated 29 academies
covering the North, Midlands, London
& B u c k i n g h a m s h i r e a n d S o u t h We s t .
The trust operates 15 primary
academies, 13 secondary academies
and one all-through academy across
England. The trust had 17,819 pupils
on roll in the trust census on 16 May
2019, which was 85% of its total
capacit y.
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17,819

Our academies
29 academies
15 primaries (P)
13 secondaries (S)
1 a l l - t h r o u g h ( P, S )

Our regions
London & Bucks
Midlands
North
S o u t h We s t

Pupils
50% female
50% male

We a r e p r o u d o f t h e r i c h d i v e r s i t y o f o u r p u p i l s , s t a f f a n d o u r c o m m u n i t i e s
across the four E-ACT regions, and we celebrate the mix of cultural heritage
and the many languages spoken in our academies. Through great teaching
and pastoral suppor t we aim to raise our pupils’ aspirations so they believe
in themselves and understand that there is nothing holding them back,
including where they happen to live or their family’s experience in education.
Academy
London & Bucks
Braintcroft E-ACT Academy (P)
C h a l f o n t Va l l e y E - A C T A c a d e m y ( P )
Denham Green E-ACT Academy (P)
Bourne End E-ACT Academy (S)
Burnham Park Academy*** (S)
City Heights E-ACT Academy (S)
The Crest Academy (S)
Midlands
D S LV ( P , S )
Mansfield Green E-ACT Academy (P)
Merritts Brook E-ACT Academy (P)
Nechells E-ACT Academy (P)
Reedswood E-ACT Academy (P)
Heartlands Academy (S)
North Birmingham Academy (S)
Shenley Academy (S)
The Parker E-ACT Academy (S)
We s t Wa l s a l l E - A C T A c a d e m y ( S )
Willenhall E-ACT Academy (S)
North
E-ACT Blackley Academy (P)
Pathways E-ACT Academy (P)
Parkwood Academy (S)
Royton & Crompton Academy (S)
The Oldham Academy North (S)
S o u t h We s t
B a d o c k ’s Wo o d E - A C T A c a d e m y ( P )
Greenfield E-ACT Academy (P)
Hareclive E-ACT Academy (P)
Ilminster Avenue Academy (P)
Perr y Cour t E-ACT Academy (P)
St Ursula’s E-ACT Academy (P)

Joined E-ACT

Pupils

Ofsted grade*

01/04/2018
01/09/2012
01/09/2013
01/09/2018
01/04/2012
01/09/2013
01/09/2009

675
177
179
611
190
766
1091

Ye t t o b e i n s p e c t e d * *
Good
Good
Ye t t o b e i n s p e c t e d * *
Inadequate
Good
Good

01/04/2012
01/01/2013
01/01/2013
01/09/2012
01/09/2012
01/09/2009
04/01/2010
01/09/2009
01/09/2012
01/09/2012
01/01/2012

926
469
221
180
475
859
1008
1027
913
915
823

Good
Outstanding
Good
Inadequate
Good
Outstanding
Good
Inadequate
Requires Improvement
Good
Requires Improvement

01/01/2012
01/09/2013
01/09/2009
01/09/2018
01/09/2010

473
442
858
1117
1143

Good
Requires Improvement
Good
Ye t t o b e i n s p e c t e d * *
Good

01/09/2018
01/09/2012
01/09/2016
01/01/2012
01/09/2017
01/09/2011

231
427
373
303
383
564

Ye t t o b e i n s p e c t e d * *
Good
Outstanding
Good
Ye t t o b e i n s p e c t e d * *
Good

As at December 2019, 82% of our academies that have been inspected are
now graded as good or better by Ofsted.
*Ofsted grade as at 31 August 2019
**Since joining E-ACT this academy has not yet received a full Ofsted inspection
*** Following the Secretar y of State’s approval, Burnham Park Academy was officially closed in August 2019

5,892
N u r s e r y t o Ye a r 6
11,272
Ye a r 7 - 1 1

59%

655
Ye a r 1 2 - 1 3

90

Of pupils achieved
the expected
standard in reading,
writing and
mathematics at key
stage 2

More than 90 different
languages are spoken
as a first language
across the trust

48%

37%

16%

1%

Disadvantaged

English as a second language

53%

Special educational needs and disability

Looked after

Of pupils achieved
a grade 4 or above
in English and
mathematics at key
stage 4
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2,545
Staff
77% female
23% male

1,179 teachers
693 educational support staff
594 operational support staff
79 regional and national staff

1 teacher for every 15 pupils
1 support staff for every 26 pupils
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Our finances

£117M

£116M

Annual income

Operating costs

2%
33
%. 9 %

2%

3%
4 %5 . 0 %

4%
7.6%

2%

2%

£922k

6.8%
8%

8%

65.2%
60%

8 5 . 66%0 %

10.9%

14%

£8.9M
The total value of our pupil premium
grant which makes up 7.6% of our
income

6.7%
7%

7%

Academies built in the last five years.
Our other 20 academies are much older
ranging from ‘70s builds to 19th century

The increase in reserves in 2018-19,
which is 0.7% of our income

£2.3M

14%

We h a v e r e c e i v e d £ 2 . 3 M a s o u r S c h o o l
Condition Allocation to address capital
and estate projects. Across the sector
the cost of dealing with major defects in
the estate is expected to double between
2015-16 to 2020-21
85.6%
7.6%
3.9%
0.8%
0.7%
0.6%
0.4%
0.3%
0.1%

GAG income
Pupil premium
Local Authority income
Other income
Lettings income
Rates relief
Tr i p s i n c o m e
Catering income
Investment income

65.2%
10.9%
6.8%
6.7%
5.0%
1.8%
1.7%
1.1%
0.8%

Education staff
Professional services staff costs
Educational supplies and services
Fixed costs
Other supplies
National staff
ICT costs
Staff development
Other GAG expenses

Reserves

£0
The total value of commercial related
party transactions in the year

Break-even
Break-even budget planned for 2019-20

£4.8M held at year end which equates to 4.1% of income
+£0.9M movement in reserves in the year
See page 70 for the trust’s reser ves policy
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What did we learn about ourselves in the
2018-19 academic year?

Education
Successes

Challenges

Our best-ever results at key stage
4 and 5. As at December 2019, 82%
of our academies that have been
inspected are now graded as good or
better by Ofsted, including a second
outstanding primar y.

Despite achieving our best-ever key
stage 4 results this year, outcomes
for all pupils, specifically for those
with special educational needs and
disabilities (SEND), varied too much
between academies facing similar
challenges.

Heartlands Academy is the best
per forming sponsored academy in
England and sixth in overall ratings
for progress.
Ever y E-ACT pupil has been issued
an E-ACT Passpor t enabling them to
take par t in a variety of aspirational
a c t i v i t i e s , a n d e v e r y Ye a r 5 p u p i l
has the oppor tunity to take par t in a
water spor ts residential on the Isle
of Wight fully funded by the trust.

Our work with local authority
services and other services to
suppor t our pupils proved challenging
in some regions. Last year only 70%
of our multi agency safeguarding hub
( M A S H ) r e f e r r a l s w e r e a c c e p t e d . We
will continue to work with the local
authorities in all of our regions to
support our pupils in accessing the
support they need.
Priorities
We w i l l f o c u s o n i m p r o v i n g s t a n d a r d s
in every academy by enabling
teachers and leaders across the
trust to work more collaboratively,
specifically on our Mastery Rubric
a n d c u r r i c u l u m s t r a t e g y. We w i l l
continue to develop multi-agency
relationships, par ticularly where
SEND and MASH referrals are
concerned.

Over the last five years,
our students’ GCSE results
have been on an upward
trajectory
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Culture
Successes

Priorities

The big culture conversation was
launched in 2019 with staff across
the trust. Feedback has shown that
our people are increasingly looking
beyond the four walls of their own
academies to pursue meaningful
opportunities to collaborate within
their regions and fur ther afield.

We w i l l c o n t i n u e t o e v o l v e o u r
culture by strengthening our
commitment to every person within
our organisation by regularly
speaking to our pupils, their parents
and our staff to further understand
their views through the big culture
conversation and through academy
visits by the Executive Leadership
Te a m . W e c o n t i n u e t o p r i o r i t i s e
people development, well-being,
communication and retention, and
we will continue to work closely with
academy leadership on succession
planning, retention and developing
our staff.

National and Regional Inset Days
grow from strength to strength and
receive exceptional feedback from
attending staff, as did the inaugural
E-ACT Leaders’ residential.
Many of our appointments, including
almost half of our headteachers, are
people who have been promoted from
within the trust. Fur thermore, our
people are pleased with the trust’s
focus on wellbeing - over 1,000
members of staff have been trained
in youth and adult Mental Health
First Aid.
By evolving our culture in this way,
we are finding new ways to provide
a better standard of education to our
pupils.
Challenges
We c o n t i n u e t o d e v e l o p o u r c u l t u r e
by listening to the ideas and opinions
of our people across 29 academies,
four regional teams and a national
team. As we embed new ways of
working and uphold our core E-ACT
values, par t of our challenge is to
share our lessons learned, and to
celebrate the excellent practice
already in place across the trust.

Over 1,000 members of
staff have been trained
in youth and adult Mental
Health First Aid
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Operations

Finance

Successes

Successes

Strengthening of educational and
operational practice across all four of
our regions. Successfully integrated
three new academies into the trust
and released operational efficiency to
invest in education.

The trust has generated a small
surplus for the financial year.
Alongside this, a balanced budget
has been prepared for 2019-20. The
future years’ forecast was developed,
and a new purchase processing
system was implemented fur ther
reducing risk across the trust.

Challenges
Continuing to find new ways of
delivering efficiencies to maximise
investment in education. Ensuring
our operational delivery model
remains effective and compliant
whilst delivering great service to our
academies.
Priorities
To d e v e l o p s e r v i c e q u a l i t y t o o u r
academies and staff whilst driving
our People Development Plan and IT
I n f r a s t r u c t u r e s t r a t e g y . To e x e c u t e
our estates strategy to maximise the
investment in our buildings and to
collect and use data in an even more
insight ful way.

Challenges
Inflation continues to be a challenge
with funding not increasing at the
same rate. Employers’ pension costs
are increasing and there has been no
confirmation that this will be fully
funded by the Education and Skills
F u n d i n g A g e n c y ( E S FA ) . W e c o n t i n u e
to aim for the correct balance
between efficiency and internal
ser vice deliver y.
Priorities
We w i l l c o n t i n u e t o d e v e l o p t h e
financial literacy of staff across
the trust - this includes rolling
out training to all academy senior
l e a d e r s h i p t e a m s . We w i l l e x p a n d
internal repor ting to include more
non-finance colleagues within
t h e t r u s t . We w i l l a l s o c o n t i n u e
to fur ther embed our zero-based
budgeting process.

Three new academies
joined the trust during the
2018-19 academic year.
We a r e n o w 2 9 a c a d e m i e s
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Governance
Successes

Priorities

Tr u s t e e s a p p o i n t e d a n e w c h i e f
executive and Executive Leadership
Te a m t o d e v e l o p a n d d e l i v e r a n e w
c o r e p u r p o s e a n d s t r a t e g y a t E - A C T.

Our half termly Raising Achievement
Boards (RABs) have provided a
strong regional governance model in
holding our academies and regions
to account. As we look ahead to next
year we will be developing a new
style Governance Review Day using
lessons learned from our RABs.

The impact of high quality repor ting,
sharing and scrutiny of evidence by
our regional directors at 20 Regional
Per formance Boards has helped
create focused collaboration to
secure rapid academy improvement.
The analysis of the impact of
collaborative work in a cluster model
in three secondary academies has
resulted in fur ther refined policies
to support education and operations
a c r o s s E - A C T, h e l p i n g s t a f f t o b e t t e r
understand legislation and statutory
guidance.
Challenges
We a r e c o n t i n u i n g t o h e l p s t a f f
across the trust understand how
everyone has responsibility for
embedding great governance at
E - A C T. O u r c h a l l e n g e i s h e l p i n g
staff, par ticularly new colleagues,
to understand that all aspects of our
governance framework, underpinned
by our Articles of Association,
Charity Law and statutory guidance
f r o m E S FA a n d t h e D f E , s u p p o r t
our academies in their day to day
operations.

We h a v e f u r t h e r r e f i n e d h o w o u r
Ambassadors work by issuing a
new E-ACT Ambassador Char ter.
This now includes expectations of
Ambassadors at Governance Review
Days.
Policy rationalisation commenced in
summer 2019 and will consolidate
new guidance to policy in the form of
quick reference booklets next year.
Our enhanced strategy for quality
assurance of policy, application and
impact will be developed so that
our governance work is increasingly
embedding the monitoring of all
compliance and policy frameworks.

We h a v e f u r t h e r r e f i n e d
how our Ambassadors
work by issuing a new
Ambassador Charter

Our key per formance indicators 2018-19

National results

Pupil progress
Key stage 2
Seven academies above
national average for
progress in reading, 11
above national average
in writing and seven
above national average
in mathematics.

Key stage 4
North Birmingham
Academy, The Oldham
Academy North and
Crest Academy in
London are again above
national average for
progress.

Heartlands
Academy
is the best
performing
sponsored
academy in
England and
sixth in overall
ratings for
progress.

Finance

We a r e
@EducationEACT

Overall salary costs to
be around 75% of total
income

Financial viability over
a three-year planning
horizon

Overall, staff costs
are 77% of net income
as recognised in the
Statement of Financial
activities. Staff costs
include teaching
staff salaries (50%),
educational support
staff (14%) and
operational staff (13%).

Each region to remain
financially viable over
the next budget period
and three-year horizon,
with continued focus
on efficiency in process
and attaining value for
money.

59%

53%

95%

Key stage 2
The percentage
of E-ACT pupils
who achieved the
expected standard in
reading, writing and
mathematics. Seven
academies surpassed
the national average of
65%.

Key stage 4
The percentage of
E-ACT students who
achieved a 4+ in English
and mathematics. The
trust’s best- ever results
with more students than
ever before passing
GCSEs in English and
mathematics.

Key stage 5
Continued improvement
at key stage 5. 95% of
E-ACT students have
been awarded a pass or
higher in one or more
qualification.

Ofsted inspections

13
The number of Ofsted
visits in 2018-19.

In 2019, Hareclive
Academy was rated
outstanding in its first
Ofsted inspection since
joining the trust just
three years ago.
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E m m a D u n k l ey, M a r k Fra n zo n i , S i a n
G l o v e r a n d G e m m a H a y n e s , D S LV
H e r e w e m e e t f o u r D S LV a c a d e m y
staff whose bravery in the face of
great adversity saved the life of a
student at the academy last year.
Assistant Headteacher Mark Franzoni
explains what happened.

Unsung
heroes

“A s t u d e n t a t o u r a c a d e m y h a s a n
extensive list of allergies which
means that our staff must be hyper
vigilant to signs of an allergic
reaction. Earlier this year, she
suffered from an allergic reaction at
an athletic event and our PE team
had to administer her EpiPen. After
this incident, our Individual Health
Care Plan Lead Gemma Haynes
briefed staff to ensure that we were
all aware of the student’s triggers,
the symptoms of an allergic reaction
and the medication she requires.

This year we are celebrating E-ACT
people who are an inspiration to us
all. Without exception, each of these
unsung heroes have shown just how
impor tant it is to live our E-ACT
values in ever ything we do.
Our unsung heroes have shown an
unwavering commitment to ensuring
our academies are always suppor ted,
encouraged and given the support
they need.
These stories celebrate how our
people go above and beyond in their
day to day work, their commitment
to enrichment and pastoral care and
in how they have quickly responded
and shown great skill and courage in
emergency situations.
They are a credit to us all.

Just a few weeks later, the student
was in a science lesson when
she noticed that she was having
difficulty swallowing. Her teacher
Emma Dunkley immediately called
down to the academy office for
suppor t from receptionist and firstaider, Sian Glover. Although we
had administered her EpiPen, the
student’s symptoms continued to
worsen and she was struggling to
breathe. At that point, Emma decided
that we should call an ambulance.

There was about to be a lesson
change, so we had to make sure
the corridor leading off from the
classroom where the student was
being kept remained clear. I was
suddenly informed that I needed to
bring the defibrillator as a second
EpiPen had been administered but
wasn’t having any effect.
We w e r e u n d e r s t a n d a b l y g e t t i n g
very worried. There were tears in the
eyes of the student’s friends and we
knew the situation had become very
serious. The ambulance still hadn’t
arrived, so the paramedics began
talking us through preparations for
CPR over the phone.
I couldn’t pick up a pulse, there was
no sign of breathing and the student
remained unresponsive. Gemma
and I, with the support of Sian and
Emma, started administering mouthto-mouth and CPR. After about a
minute and a half, we suddenly felt
movement and the student started
to stir. The paramedic on the phone
instructed us to stop the CPR and
to put her into the recovery position
- it was at that moment that the
paramedics arrived.
Despite the student’s long list of
allergies and the difficulties that
they cause her, she just gets on with
life and she’s brilliant at ever y thing
s h e d o e s .”
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We n d y D a v e n p o r t
The Oldham Academy North

Jackie Doughty
Parkwood E-ACT Academy

We n d y h a s w o r k e d a t T h e O l d h a m
Academy North since it first opened
in 2010, and according to her
colleagues she is the backbone of
the academy. As well as carr ying out
her own full-time role of catering
assistant and premises cleaner, she
is always offering to help others and
has built fantastic relationships with
both students and staff.

Here we meet unsung hero Jackie
Dought y, a pastoral manager at
Parkwood E-ACT Academy, whose
dedication to her students knows no
bounds.

We n d y h a s a l w a y s g o n e a b o v e a n d
beyond to suppor t the academy’s
most vulnerable students, from
noticing when students need
clean uniforms to ensuring that
all female students have access to
the hygiene products they require.
During breaks, she looks out for
changes in students’ eating patterns
or behaviour, and even outside of
a c a d e m y, We n d y i s k e e n t o r e m i n d
students that they represent The
Oldham Academy North at all times.
C o l l e a g u e s n o t e t h a t We n d y i s
always smiling and is keen to pitch
in and be part of the academy team.
Her work exemplifies our values of
doing the right thing and team spirit
and she takes great pride in her role.
We’ r e d e l i g h t e d t h a t We n d y, a t r u e
unsung hero of 2018-19, was this
y e a r a w a r d e d t h e E - A C T S t a f f Va l u e s
A w a r d f o r S h o w i n g Te a m S p i r i t a t t h e
trust’s National Celebration Event .

Unsung
heroes

T h i s y e a r , We n d y s t e p p e d i n t o a s s i s t
the ar t depar tment when they were
without an art technician, helping
students to prepare for their final
e x a m . We n d y c a n a l s o b e c o u n t e d o n
to offer students suffering from exam
stress emotional suppor t. Her impact
on the student body could perhaps
most be felt during last summer ’s
Ye a r 1 1 f a r e w e l l a s s e m b l y , w h e n
students could be heard chanting her
n a m e . We n d y a l s o h a p p e n s t o b e t h e
only member of staff that students
are glad to see on the dance floor at
t h e Ye a r 1 1 p r o m !

A l e x a n d e r , Ye a r 6
Perr y Cour t E-ACT Academy
In May 2019, pupils at Perr y Cour t
E-ACT Academy were delighted to
welcome the Mayor of Bristol, Marvin
Rees to their academy.
Ye a r 6 p u p i l A l e x a n d e r h a d p r e v i o u s l y
written to the mayor to invite him
to a sponsored community litter
pick that he had helped to arrange
earlier in the year. While the mayor
was unable to attend the event, he
was keen to meet Alexander and
visit Perr y Cour t after hearing about
the academy’s amazing results and
n o m i n a t i o n f o r t h e Te s P r i m a r y
S c h o o l o f t h e Ye a r a w a r d .
Alexander was delighted to show the
mayor around, taking him to meet
different classes before the mayor
addressed pupils at assembly.
“It was really fun getting to meet
the mayor and show him around. I’m
glad he got to see all of the great
i m p r o v e m e n t s a t o u r a c a d e m y.”
Alexander
After the visit, the mayor tweeted:
“Brilliant visit to Perr y Cour t on
Friday. Great to learn about the
commitment for every teacher to be
trained in Mental Health First Aid
and how they encourage students
to thing big, show team spirit and
do the right thing. Special thanks to
Alexander for showing me around!”

“In my role as pastoral manager
at Parkwood, I’m the first por t
of call for students and parents
needing suppor t. Our team looks at
attendance, attainment, achievement
and behaviour, working closely
with families to see how we can
suppor t them. If there are barriers
to learning, I’ll see what we can do
to help. Basically, our team helps
to keep everything in order so that
teaching can take place!
Every day is different. Normally I get
in just after 7.15am and put together
a repor t on yesterday’s behaviour to
send to our progress leaders. I’ll be
off out on home visits as attendance
can be an issue with some students,
so we are trying different tactics to
ensure that attendance is above 95%.
When I get back, I walk the academy
grounds to check on classes that
might need assistance. Then I’ll
be out on break dut y. After that ,
it’s back to suppor ting classes and
dealing with any issues that arise.
I’ll also need to talk with any parents
that call us or pop into the academy.
After school, I deal with any students
that have detention, making sure that
they are where they’re supposed to
be.
I just want every single student at
this academy to do the very best they
can. I go home sometimes thinking,
could I have done more? What
could I have done better? Our old
headteacher used to tell me to switch
off when I went home, but I can’t.
I live, breathe and even dream this
job. It’s a vocation. If I didn’t love it ,
I wouldn’t still be doing it after 20
years!”
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The safeguarding team at
Reedswood E-ACT Academy
In September 2018, Reedswood
E-ACT Academy's safeguarding team
showed exceptional teamwork to
support a particularly unwell pupil,
who without their intervention and
care may have experienced far worse
consequences.
According to Headteacher Maxine
Lathbur y-Cox, who is also the
academy’s deputy designated
safeguarding lead, staff had voiced
concerns about the health of a pupil
since the first half of the autumn
term.
The safeguarding team, led by
Designated Safeguarding Lead
Natalie Shipley, worked with the
pupil’s family to ensure that the
pupil was seen by a doctor given
concerns raised by staff. The pupil
was subsequently referred for an
MRI scan, and the team scheduled
a follow-up meeting with the family
to ensure her situation was being
monitored closely.
When the pupil returned after half
term however, her class teacher
We n d y C l i f f t n o t i c e d t h a t s h e h a d
deteriorated over the holidays.
We n d y m a d e a r a p i d a s s e s s m e n t o f
the pupil’s health and immediately
aler ted the safeguarding team who
contacted the pupil’s parents. Unable
to reach them, the team made the
decision to take the pupil to hospital
themselves.

At Birmingham Children’s Hospital,
it was discovered that the pupil had
a tumour measuring 7cm x 4cm at
the back of her brain which had been
affecting her balance and causing her
pain down one leg. For tunately an
emergency operation to remove the
tumour was successful and the pupil
has since made good progress.
Members of the safeguarding
team, as well as teachers from the
academy, visited the pupil whilst she
was in hospital and at home, and the
team also provided suppor t to the
family, collecting her older brother
from school while parents were in
hospital with their daughter.
Through fundraising within the
academy and the local communit y,
the safeguarding team donated
pyjamas and comfortable clothing for
the pupil to wear during her recover y,
Christmas presents for the pupil and
her brothers and a shor t holiday for
the family. Safeguarding officers
at the academy also supported the
family to apply to a charity for a
supportive donation.
Reedswood’s safeguarding team
deserve enormous credit, and it
is down to their incredible effor ts
that the pupil received the care she
needed and is now on her way back
to full health.

Unsung
heroes
The student leadership team at
North Birmingham Academy
Over the last three years, the student
leadership team at North Birmingham
Academy have been playing a vital
role in improving academy life by
supporting staff to launch new and
important student initiatives.
Recently the students helped to
redesign the academy’s rewards and
sanctions policy, identif ying that
more focus needed to be placed on
positive behaviour and hard work.
As a result, a rewards week was
introduced to celebrate the successes
of their peers.
The student leadership team have
also helped to tackle punctuality and
reducing litter around the academy
grounds. For example, by being a
positive presence at the academy
gates at the start of the academy
day, prefects identif y students who
are repeatedly late and suppor t them
through 1:1 mentoring.
The academy can be incredibly
proud of the positive impact that
the leadership team has had on
NBA students and the academy as a
whole.
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Unsung
heroes
Abby Miles
Perr y Cour t E-ACT Academy

D a i s y , Ye a r 8
Bourne End E-ACT Academy
D a i s y , a Ye a r 8 s t u d e n t a t B o u r n e
End E-ACT Academy, was given
the incredibly impor tant job of
tour guide when HRH Prince Harry
visited Oxford Children’s Hospital on
Tu e s d a y 1 4 M a y 2 0 1 9 .
Daisy, a former patient , was asked by
one of her doctors if she would like
to show a VIP around the hospital,
but it wasn’t until the day before
the visit that Daisy found out that it
was Prince Harry! She was thrilled to
meet the prince, gifting him a teddy
bear for baby Archie.
“Meeting Prince Harry was so
amazing. He was really down-toear th and it didn’t feel like he was
royalt y. When there were big crowds
of people during the tour, he always
checked I was there behind him!”

The pupils of Perr y Cour t E-ACT
Academy are proud to have their very
own spor ts star at their academy.
This year Abby Miles, a lead sports
coach at Perr y Cour t, represented
E n g l a n d a t t h e I n d o o r N e t b a l l Wo r l d
Cup and was even nominated for
a prestigious Bristol Post Spor ts
Award.
Abby travelled with the England
Netball Nets under 21 team to
compete in South Africa in August,
where they made it all the way
to the semi-finals. For Abby, the
achievement was an oppor tunity
to inspire the pupils back at Perr y
Cour t, showing them the fantastic
places that spor t could take them.
Abby was also shor tlisted for the
p r e s t i g i o u s C o a c h o f t h e Ye a r
award at the 2019 Bristol Live &
Bristol Post Spor ts Awards. The
awards celebrate the true heroes of
grassroots spor t, including coaches
and clubs who encourage people of
all ages to get involved. Abby was
nominated by staff, parents and
members of the Perr y Cour t E-ACT
Academy communit y, who recognised
just how hard she works to motivate
children to get them involved in
sport.

Karen Hayns
Bourne End E-ACT Academy
Our Academy Ambassadors are
people who share a great passion for
their academies. They might be an
academy parent, a member of staff
or even a community member, and it
is through their active involvement
in academy life that they support our
pupils by helping to provide them
with inspiring opportunities.
Here we meet one of our Academy
Ambassador unsung heroes, Karen
Haynes, who together with her team
o r g a n i s e d a n i n s p i r a t i o n a l Wo r l d o f
Wo r k e v e n t f o r s t u d e n t s a t B o u r n e
End Academy in 2019.
“A s B o u r n e E n d A c a d e m y o n l y j o i n e d
E-ACT in September 2018, our
ambassador group is relatively new.
We f o r m e d i n J a n u a r y 2 0 1 9 a n d a t
that time there was only four of us.
I was keen that we didn’t become a
committee that just got together to
have discussions and not really make
a n i m p a c t . Ve r y q u i c k l y, w e m a d e t h e
decision that we were going to use
the two terms left in the academic
year to do something special.

I don’t know how we pulled it all
together so quickly, but the event
w a s a h u g e s u c c e s s ! We h a d o v e r 2 0 0
people turn up, with great attendance
f r o m Ye a r 1 0 s t u d e n t s i n p a r t i c u l a r .
This was a real positive for us as
these were the students who were
about to embark upon their final
year of key stage 4, so it was great
to be able to give them ideas for the
future.

We d e c i d e d t o p u t o n a c a r e e r s f a i r ,
w h i c h w e d u b b e d t h e Wo r l d o f Wo r k
e v e n t . We’ r e l u c k y t o h a v e o u r o w n
networks, as well as Bourne End
parents in business that we could
call on to come and exhibit for the
students.

Starting our academy ambassador
journey with a big project helped us
to figure out our different strengths
and what each of us could bring to
the group. It was also a good way
of getting to know how E-ACT works
and it put us in touch with helpful
people in the national team.
As a working parent, being an
Academy Ambassador is my way of
giving back. I care about education
– I’ve been back in education myself
as an adult and I really value it. I
don’t think that will ever leave me.
I think the good work that we’ve
already done is down to each of
us. Even though I may be the chair,
it’s just another role in the group.
Everyone in our team does their bit
and works hard to come up with
great ideas and keep that momentum
g o i n g . We’ r e a l r e a d y l o o k i n g f o r w a r d
t o g e t t i n g s t u c k i n n e x t y e a r.”

It was thanks to the monumental
effor ts of St Ursula’s E-ACT
Academy’s safeguarding team that a
pupil was protected from coming to
harm.
Concerns about a child’s safety can
be raised when absence is requested
by a pupil’s family. St Ursula’s E-ACT
Academy staff place great emphasis
on building strong relationships with
parents and carers so they feel able
to communicate openly and honestly
when wanting to take their child out
of academy.
Thanks to the academy’s thorough
record-keeping, staff were able to
see historic information about the
pupil from a previous school, which
revealed that similar concerns had
been raised in the past. Interagency work bet ween the academy,
social care and the police followed
ensuring that action was taken before
the pupil could come to any harm.
Following the incident, through open
and honest dialogue the academy has
worked closely with the pupil’s family
despite the complexity of the issue.
The safeguarding team is now
working closely with the Keeping
Bristol Safe partnership to complete
a review with the parents, their
social worker and a community
advocate, which will look at the
team’s practice and lessons that have
been learned in the process.
St Ursula’s safeguarding team
deserve enormous credit, and there
is no doubt that effective teamwork
and the vigilance of staff has ensured
that the pupil avoided harm and
continues to at tend the academy.

D I VA
Parkwood E-ACT Academy
It has been an unbelievable year for
P a r k w o o d A c a d e m y ’ s D I VA . S i n c e
winning a Spotlight award at the
National Pupil Celebration event in
2 0 1 8 , t h e Ye a r 9 s t u d e n t s h a v e g o n e
on to per form in front of thousands
a t We m b l e y A r e n a , h a d o n e o f t h e i r
songs played on national radio
and gained a loyal following on
social media. Their drive, ambition
and ability to think big is truly
inspirational, making them three of
our unsung heroes of 2018-19.
D I VA f o r m e d b a c k i n Ye a r 7 , a f t e r
their music teacher Scott Swallow
encouraged them to try playing
together. The group were soon
meeting up twice a week, playing
different songs that they liked and
writing their own music.

Unsung
heroes

The safeguarding team at St
Ursula’s E-ACT Academy and
Regional Safeguarding System
Leader, John Spring

With suppor t from music teacher
J o r d a n R a b j o h n , D I VA s t a r t e d
recording tracks and sharing them
online. They even produced a number
of music videos and set up accounts
on social media to promote the band.
The group were thrilled when they
heard their song ‘Feelings’ being
played on BBC Radio Sheffield,
where it got lots of praise from the
presenter!
A n o t h e r h i g h l i g h t f o r D I VA w a s
having their hard work and talent
r e c o g n i s e d b y t h e Tr a n s f o r m a t i o n
Tr u s t , w h i c h s e l e c t e d t h e b a n d a s
the winner of their Rock Assembly
competition. Their prize was to play
i n f r o n t o f 1 0 , 0 0 0 p e o p l e a t We m b l e y
Arena alongside Razorlight and
Professor Green.

“The adrenaline rush before you get
on stage in front of that many people
is crazy. The ner ves really get you.
But once we were on stage, we forgot
everyone was there and enjoyed
e v e r y s e c o n d .”
Precious, lead singer
T h e n e x t c h a p t e r f o r D I VA i s a s c h o o l
tour, where they plan to launch the
new music they’ve been working
on. The group hope to travel around
schools in Sheffield and further
afield to connect with other young
people – par ticularly other E-ACT
students!
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2019-20 future plans

Opening Minds, Opening Doors
Next year we will implement our core
purpose and strategy, Opening Minds,
Opening Doors.
We w i l l d o t h i s b y :
•
•
•
•

Having uncompromising
aspirations for all
Living our values
Having the best people and
investing in them
Understanding, celebrating and
working with our communities

In the coming year E-ACT will work
on seven main objectives in fulfilling
the first year of the strategy:
•
•

•
•
•
•

•

Continue to develop great
teaching through the Mastery
Rubric
Continue to fully embed English
and maths mastery curriculum and
a coherent approach to curriculum
planning
Fur ther develop great induction
for staff
Tr a n s f o r m o u r r e t e n t i o n a n d
recruitment strategy - staff,
pupils, academies, apprentices
Fur ther develop succession
planning
Continuous development of
financial literacy and three-year
planning for sustainability and
growth
Broaden and deepen understanding
and improve governance - RABs/
RPBs, the Scheme of Delegation
and impact of Ambassadors

We e x p e c t t h e s t r a t e g y t o
significantly reduce the gap in
outcomes for our pupils between
our highest and lowest performing
a c a d e m i e s i n i t s f i r s t y e a r . We w i l l d o
this by developing a knowledge-rich
curriculum and great teaching. The
embedding and quality of the Mastery
Rubric is a key driver in suppor ting
our first and second objectives.
Through the combination of the
seven objectives and our focus on our
people, we will also strive to become
an employer of choice.

Our People Development Plan

Our Mental Health Strategy

We c a n o n l y O p e n M i n d s a n d O p e n
Doors if we have the very best people
working across the trust. People who
want to join us, stay with us and
d e v e l o p t h e i r c a r e e r a t E - A C T.

Next year we will continue our
work around staff and pupil mental
h e a l t h a c r o s s E - A C T. We s t r i v e t o b e
nationally recognised as a trust of
excellence in suppor ting the urgent
mental health issues affecting so
many adults and young people today.

Through our People Development
Plan we will create:
•
•
•

•

Over 1,000
members of
staff have been
trained in youth
and adult Mental
Health First Aid

A happy inspiring place to work
where all staff want to develop
their career with us
A talent process and talent pool
that is transparent and equitable
and helps everyone feel valued
A personal development plan for
all staff to help with productive
and honest coaching conversations
with line managers and mentors
Investment in all staff through
increasingly bespoke professional
development that reflects the
needs of the organisation as well
as specific routes through our new
and developing career pathways at
E-ACT

Building on developments this
year through our ‘big culture
c o n v e r s a t i o n ’, w e w i l l b e e m b e d d i n g
new processes in the coming year for
retaining, recruiting and nur turing
our talent. Our new apprenticeship
strategy will help secure apprentices
across our education and operational
functions in each region.
In developing our staff we will
increase our initiatives to suppor t
well-being. Our mental health
strategy is a critical part of this
work and we will continue to further
develop our focus on staff physical,
social and emotional well-being.

The five strands in our strategy will
enable us to further develop our
personalised Mental Health Curricula
and a Mental Health Hub in every
region.
The five strands are:
Strand 1: Suppor ting young people
with mental health difficulties
Strand 2: Suppor ting adults with
mental health difficulties
Strand 3: Educating young people
about mental health
Strand 4: Utilising suppor t from
external agencies and charities
effectively
S t r a n d 5 : S u p p o r t i n g p a r e n t s /c a r e r s
and the community with mental
health difficulties.
Our first Hub, The Launchpad in
Bristol, will provide suppor t to
pupils from academies in the region
who may be experiencing mental
health difficulties which affect their
inclusion, educational achievement
and emotional wellbeing. Specifically,
the hub will focus on support for
pupils whose prime areas of need are
a t t a c h m e n t a n d /o r a n x i e t y .
We w i l l c o n t i n u e t o d e l i v e r M e n t a l
H e a l t h F i r s t A i d Tr a i n i n g a n d s c o p e
out the setting up of Hubs in our
other three regions.
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Structure, governance and
management

Developing excellence
in governance
throughout our trust

B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s
E-ACT is a charitable company
limited by guarantee (number
06526376) and an exempt charit y.
It is governed by its Memorandum
and Articles of Association. The
B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s , w h o a r e a l s o t h e
directors of the charitable company
for the purposes of Company Law,
have overall responsibility for the
direction, management and control
of E-ACT and ensuring excellence
in governance across the trust. Our
four committees suppor t the Board
o f Tr u s t e e s i n d i s c h a r g i n g t h e s e
responsibilities. The charitable
company operates as E-ACT and the
operational management of E-ACT
across all 29 of our academies is
delegated to the chief executive
officer (CEO) and her Executive
Leadership team.
The board meets a minimum of five
times per annum and may meet
additionally as required. The full
B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s m e t f i v e t i m e s
during the year 2018-2019.
Board composition
The board may be comprised of no
fewer than three people. All trustees
are unpaid in their roles as trustees.
At the time of approving the accounts
f o r 2 0 1 8 - 1 9 , t h e B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s i s
made up as follows:
•
•

11 trustees appointed by the
members (Articles 45–50); and
The chief executive officer as an
ex- officio trustee (Ar ticles 50B
and 57)

Details of the trustees who served
during the year are included in the
Reference and Administrative details
section of this repor t on page 6.

Committee composition and
accountability
T h e B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s a p p o i n t s
members of the:
•
•
•
•

Audit and Risk Committee
Finance Committee
Education Committee
Personnel Committee

The Finance Committee, Audit
and Risk Committee, Education
Committee and Personnel Committee
meet five times a year in a cycle of
meetings.

The four committees are made up of
trustees with relevant knowledge,
skills and experience. The Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m a n d c h i e f e x e c u t i v e
officer have standing invitations
to attend the committee and board
meetings. Both external and internal
auditors are invited to attend the
Audit and Risk Committee meetings.
Other individuals, for example
members of the Extended Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m , m a y a l s o b e i n v i t e d
to present on key items on the
agenda. This year, members of our
E x t e n d e d E x e c u t i v e L e a d e r s h i p Te a m
( E E LT ) h a v e p r e s e n t e d t o t h e b o a r d
and committees on aspects such
as our Mastery Rubric, our culture
programme through our ‘big culture
c o n v e r s a t i o n ’, t h e d e v e l o p m e n t o f a
coherent knowledge-rich curriculum
and safeguarding of pupils. This
gives a chance for our trustees to
hear from a wider group of senior
managers from across the trust
and provides good professional
d e v e l o p m e n t o p p o r t u n i t y f o r o u r E E LT
and other staff to meet and work
directly with trustees.
Each committee and full board
meeting under takes a detailed
scrutiny of the repor ts and discussion
papers presented by the Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m . E a c h c o m m i t t e e
agenda incorporates standing items
and other matters delegated to
c o m m i t t e e s a c c o r d i n g t o t h e Te r m s o f
Reference for each committee and the
Scheme of Delegation. Throughout
the year, the trustees and Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m e v a l u a t e t h e q u a l i t y
of repor ting and the effectiveness of
each committee, as well as checking
c o m p l i a n c e w i t h Te r m s o f R e f e r e n c e
and statutory guidance. This ensures
that robust challenge and suppor t
from trustees informs the strategic
work of the Executive Leadership
Te a m a n d g o o d g o v e r n a n c e .
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Method of recruitment and
appointment or election of trustees

Policies and procedures adopted for
the induction and training of trustees

Each trustee serves a term of office
of four years and this is renewable.
The Secretary of State is entitled
to appoint a member under Article
12b, although he has chosen not to
exercise this entitlement this year.

Newly appointed trustees receive a
one-to-one half day induction and
welcome meetings with the chief
executive officer and each member
o f h e r E x e c u t i v e L e a d e r s h i p Te a m .
An induction pack includes key
policies such as the Conflicts of
I n t e r e s t P o l i c y , t h e Tr u s t e e E x p e n s e s
Policy, the Ar ticles of Association
a n d t h e r e s p e c t i v e C o m m i t t e e Te r m s
of Reference. Information about
the role and duties of a trustee are
provided in documentation such as
CC3 (Charity Commission) Essential
Tr u s t e e g u i d a n c e .

Applications for board membership
are invited by national and external
adver tisement. Applicants are
interviewed by the chair of the
B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s a n d t h e n a p a n e l
of trustees led by the chair of the
a p p r o p r i a t e c o m m i t t e e . Tr u s t e e s
are appointed according to the
relevant knowledge, competencies
and experience required on the
board at that time. During the year
under review, no new trustees were
recruited. However, the ex- officio
trustee was updated to reflect the
change in chief executive officer this
year.

Tr u s t e e s a r e k e p t u p t o d a t e w i t h
developments across the trust
through regular communications
from the chief executive officer and
t h e E x e c u t i v e L e a d e r s h i p Te a m .
Tr u s t e e s a r e i n c l u d e d i n t r a i n i n g
sessions such as our annual internal
safeguarding course. In line with the
UK Corporate Governance Code, the
B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s a p p r a i s e s i t s o w n
performance and contribution on an
annual basis. The most recent review
was under taken in late summer 2019
and the findings will be presented to
the board in autumn 2019.

Members’ liability
Each member of the charitable
company under takes to contribute to
the assets of the charitable company
in the event of it being wound up
while they are a member, or within
one year after they cease to be a
member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10, for
the debts and liabilities contracted
before they ceased to be a member.
Tr u s t i n d e m n i t i e s
There are no qualifying third par ty
indemnity provisions.
Meet our Board
o f Tr u s t e e s a t
www.e -act .org.uk

Wo r k i n g w i t h t h e g o v e r n a n c e t e a m
a n d t h e E x e c u t i v e L e a d e r s h i p Te a m ,
trustees share their suggestions for
additional training and briefings to
upskill the board. The most recent
internal board review examined
what trustees would like to develop
fur ther in the coming year. Drawing
on outcomes from the Board Review,
the governance team is working with
trustees to develop a resource bank
and specific sessions to support new
areas of knowledge for trustees.
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Raising Achievement Boards (RABs)

Organisational structure and our
regional model of governance
E-ACT operates 29 academies across
four regions in England (London
& B u c k s , S o u t h We s t , N o r t h a n d
Midlands including Daventry).
E-ACT has a devolved governance
structure with operational and
educational management led by our
regional directors in each of the
four regions. All four regions are
required to operate within a trustwide national governance framework
set by the trustees and Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m ( E LT ) .
This devolved structure of
governance is led by our regional
education and operational directors.
They may be supported by deputies
and will often have a small team
of exper ts in a range of system
leader roles. This may include roles
such as system leaders for finance,
procurement, safeguarding, subject
specialists and system leaders
for special educational needs and
disabilities.
It is through joint work of the
regional governance team,
headteachers and our senior
leadership teams that we secure
effective and efficient decision
making in and for the regions. This
is designed not only to increase
accountability but also increase
transparency and ownership in our
decision making processes.

In this regional model of governance
our regional directors lead on many
scrutiny and challenge functions
carried out by the former local
governing bodies.
The illustration below shows how
the governance model operates in
holding academies and regional
teams to account for their
per formance and how the Board of
Tr u s t e e s t h r o u g h t h e c o m m i t t e e c y c l e
in turn hold the chief executive and
h e r E x e c u t i v e L e a d e r s h i p Te a m t o
account. In addition it is through our
Raising Achievement Board process
that we balance accountability
with identifying best practice and
key priorities that our regional
system and senior leadership teams
can develop in regions to drive
sustainable academy improvement.

E v i d e n c e /d a t a
and analysis

05

01
Academy
Raising
Achievement
Boards (RABs)

02
Tr u s t b o a r d
cycle

Regional
Per formance
Boards (RPBs)

04
Committee
cycles

03

Through a six week cycle of halftermly Raising Achievement
Board days in each academy, the
regional education directors hold
headteachers and leadership teams
to account under the delegated
a u t h o r i t y o f t h e B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s .
The regional operations directors
hold the local operations teams to
account for the impact of their work
in each academy in the respective
region.
Raising Achievement Board days
hold academies to account for
educational performance and
operational compliance and the day
provides a balance of challenge and
suppor t in identifying key priorities
and strategies for improvement. The
guidance used by regional teams
ensures scrutiny across the trust is
consistent and effective.

Until the latter part of last year
every academy received a halftermly Raising Achievement Board
regardless of current per formance.
However during the spring and
summer term 2019 the Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m b e g a n t o d e v e l o p
a trial of reducing the frequency of
RABs in our outstanding academes.
These academies have sustainable
capacity and strong pupil outcomes
so do not need the high levels of
support that other academies may
require.
By modelling a more bespoke
accountability process coupled
with targeted working alongside
days to offer suppor t as needed,
t h e E x e c u t i v e L e a d e r s h i p Te a m w i l l
take for ward a new, more bespoke
model of Governance Review Days
commencing in January 2020.
These will constitute a governance
accountability day with one very
deep focused day for each academy
per term.
In between the governance review
days, the national director of
education, regional directors and
regional exper ts will plan and
deliver a suppor t package whereby
each academy receives suppor t and
challenge depending upon its current
per formance and rate of progress.
This support in the form of working
alongside days will enable both
regional and academy colleagues to
tackle the areas within academies
that require the most significant
development.
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Regional Per formance Boards (RPBs)

E-ACT Academy Ambassadors

The half-termly Regional Per formance
Boards led by the Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m h o l d t h e r e g i o n a l
education and regional operations
directors to account for operational
and educational performance
in the region. These challenge
meetings give regional directors the
oppor tunity to aggregate evidence
from the RABs and various sources
of data into a critical review of
the region to present to Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m . T h e r o b u s t d e b a t e
a t t h e s e m e e t i n g s e n a b l e s E LT
to examine key issues as well as
identifying good practice in and
across the four regions.

Our E-ACT Ambassadors per form a
vital volunteer role in connecting
our academies to the communities
we serve. Our volunteers are unsung
heroes in the generous ways they
give their time, energy and insight
when working with us across our
trust.

Tr u s t e e c o m m i t t e e s a n d t h e f u l l
B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s
Through the cycle of committees,
t h e E x e c u t i v e L e a d e r s h i p Te a m
are held to account on educational
performance, personnel matters,
operational performance, finance and
audit and risk across the trust.
These meetings enable the Executive
L e a d e r s h i p Te a m t o p r e s e n t a r a n g e
of evidence in scrutiny papers,
collated from findings at the Regional
Per formance Boards and presented
as summary papers or papers that
require trustee discussion as par t
of our educational and operational
strategy work across the trust.
Tr u s t e e s f o c u s o n t h e e f f i c a c y a n d
impact of the regional governance
model and compliance with our legal
and statutory responsibilities.

Our Ambassadors are well placed
to enter dialogue with parents
at each academy because their
relationship is personal, unique,
l o c a l a n d s p e c i f i c . We k n o w
that the local knowledge and
understanding of pupils and families
can help us improve each academy
through good communication and
liaison with our senior leaders
and regional teams. This is why
E-ACT requires academies to have
a group of Ambassadors which
includes two parent and community
representatives who have key
relationships within the areas that
our 29 academies serve.
Using good will, imagination and
experience, our E-ACT Ambassadors
work with headteachers, academies
and regional teams to strengthen the
links between the academy and the
communit y, and engage with academy
improvement strategy to secure great
education for all pupils.

E-ACT Ambassadors have a direct
l i n k t o t h e B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s t h r o u g h
our nominee trustee, Cameron
Pyke. The chair of the Board of
Tr u s t e e s a p p r o v e s t h e a p p o i n t m e n t
of the chairs of Ambassadors and
Ambassadors have a direct line to
the trustees through their respective
chairs.
Over the last two years the
Ambassador Charter has focused
on four key areas of work;
communication, communit y,
celebration, complaints (the four Cs),
and our Academy Ambassadors have
led many projects across the trust.
From celebrating pupil achievement
at our regional celebration events,
organising events to bring our
communities together, cultural
events, allotment and garden projects
to being Ambassador members in
exclusion panels, their commitment is
unwavering.

Meet Bourne
End Academy
Ambassador Karen
Hayns on page 41

Building on work over the last
two years, the governance team
completed a review of the previously
titled Ambassadorial Advisory Groups
(AAGs) and evaluated the impact of
the trust in meeting the strategic
priority from the previous year ’s
annual repor t, 2017-18. From the
review, the governance team working
with the Executive Leadership
Te a m a n d t r u s t e e s h a v e r e v i s e d t h e
Ambassador remit and refocused
the Char ter to the core purpose and
strategy for 2019-20 Opening Minds,
Opening Doors.
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Arrangements for setting pay and
remuneration of key management
personnel
In line with E-ACT’s scheme of
delegated authorit y, the pay and
remuneration package of all of the
E x e c u t i v e L e a d e r s h i p Te a m , r e g i o n a l
directors and headteachers are
formally approved by the Personnel
Committee. During the academic year
under review, trustees approved the
removal of per formance-related pay
for all employees at E-ACT which
included key management personnel.
This change came into effect in
September 2019 and the teacher pay
and appraisal policies were updated
to reflect the change.
A pay framework was approved
in June 2019 for senior leaders
w h i c h i n c l u d e s t h e C E O , E LT a n d
E E LT . H e a d t e a c h e r s w i l l r e m a i n o n
leadership scales and their scale
points are to be noted annually by
the remuneration committee.
The previous CEO was awarded a pay
increase by the trustees during the
year taking his salary to £160,789.
The new CEO was appointed on a
salary of £177,773 which will be
reviewed annually by trustees. The
new CEO is to be formally appraised
by the chair annually.

Related parties and other connected
charities and organisations

Tr a d e u n i o n f a c i l i t y t i m e
Relevant union officials
Number of
employees who
were relevant union
officials during the
period

Full-time
equivalent
employee number

28

27.43

Percentage of time spent on facility
time
Percentage of time

Number of
employees

0%

16

1%-50%

12

51%-99%

-

100%

-

Percentage of pay bill spent on
facility time
To t a l c o s t o f
facility time

£22,130

To t a l p a y b i l l

£81,198,788

Percentage of the
total pay bill spent
on facility time

0.03%

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on
paid trade union
activities as a
percentage of total
paid facility time
hours

0%

E-ACT is a multi-academy trust and
sponsor in its own right and is not
part of a wider academy network.
E-ACT is engaged with other
organisations in the provision of
education.
Academies and academy proprietors
(otherwise known as academy
trusts or academy companies) are
exempt charities, which means
they are exempt from day to day
Charity Commission supervision (The
Charities Act 2011). These charities
cannot register with the Charity
Commission and are outside their
monitoring and investigative powers,
but they have the same status and
tax benefits as other charities in
E n g l a n d a n d Wa l e s a n d m u s t c o m p l y
with general charit y law. They are
subject to the jurisdiction of the
courts and can ask the Charity
Commission to exercise their suppor t
powers when necessar y, for example,
to authorise an action not otherwise
allowed by their governing document.
The principal regulator for every
academy trust, since 1 August
2011, is the Secretary of State for
Education through the Depar tment
for Education (DfE), with finance
and governance overseen by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Public benefit
E-ACT’s trustees have complied
with their duty to have due regard
to the guidance on public benefit
published by the Charity Commission
in exercising their powers or duties.
E-ACT promotes education for the
benefit of the local communities in
which its academies are situated and
offers educational and recreational
facilities to local community groups
outside academies’ core hours for
the benefit of the general public.
Community based projects and
fundraising are also under taken
throughout the year by staff and
students, which further enhances the
public benefit.
E-ACT’s Ambassadorial Advisor y
Groups have a remit to seek new
ways for each academy to improve
its relationships and role within
the local communit y. For the year
under review, this was the focus of
bespoke AAG projects which ran in
several of the academies, such as
family fun days, building a library
and hosting a careers expo.

The Charity Commission and the
DfE entered into a memorandum
of understanding in July 2012
to formalise the details of the
relationship as principal regulators.
It was designed to ensure
that academies are regulated
appropriately and effectively as
charities but through oversight
mechanisms to ensure that regulation
is propor tionate and avoids
duplication.
E-ACT is currently not working
with any related par ties or other
connected organisations.
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Going concern
To a s s e s s t h e o r g a n i s a t i o n ’ s p o s i t i o n
and ensure E-ACT remains a going
c o n c e r n , t h e B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s h a v e
taken into consideration several key
factors, which include;
•
•
•
•
•
•

The level of reserves currently
held by E-ACT
The 2019-20 budget and future
years’ forecasts
Risks facing E-ACT and the
management of those risks
Increasing numbers of pupils and
projected pupil numbers
The strengthening of our regions
The risk adverse approach to cash
management

T h e B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s h a v e a
reasonable expectation that the
trust has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, E-ACT continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements. Fur ther details
regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies.

Employee involvement and
employment of disabled persons
In addition to the trust and academy
equality objectives, E-ACT has
a suite of policies that cover all
aspects of personnel management.
For example:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Equality and Diversity
Safer Recruitment
D i g n i t y a t Wo r k
Appraisal
Pay
Code of Conduct
Child Protection and Safeguarding
Local Government Pension Scheme
Pension Scheme Discretions
Health and Safety

E-ACT has in place a national
recognition agreement with the main
teaching and support unions. Regular
meetings of this Joint Negotiating
Committee were held in the year
when matters of mutual interest were
discussed. The unions communicate
to their members through locally
appointed union representatives.
The headteacher of each academy
meets their staff regularly to ensure
that they are aware of relevant issues
and initiatives.
E-ACT has long-established fair
employment practices in the
recruitment, retention, promotion
and training of disabled staff. In
the unfor tunate circumstance of a
current employee becoming disabled,
E ACT will take all reasonable steps
possible to support that member of
staff.

Modern slavery and human trafficking
E-ACT is committed to ensuring that
there is no modern slavery or human
trafficking in our supply chain or
i n a n y p a r t o f o u r c h a r i t y. We a r e
committed to acting ethically and
with integrity in all our charitable
and business relationships.
As an educational trust , E-ACT’s
immediate supply chain is entirely
within the United Kingdom; we do not
transact with organisations outside
of the EU. Around 77% of E-ACT’s
costs are direct employment costs.
Our extended supply chain, second
tier and third tier are predominately
based within the United Kingdom.
E-ACT does not consider, as a trust,
that we transact with any countries
or regions that are considered areas
of risk.

During the financial year 201819, a review was conducted of
the regional and national risks to
E-ACT via safeguarding and supply
chain routes. Systems and process
were found to be robust, especially
in relation to safeguarding and
improvements in controls identified
in procurement. The findings and
areas of focus for the next financial
year are published in the Modern
Slavery Statement approved by
trustees in Februar y.

Should the position arise where
E-ACT transacts with an area
considered to be a potential risk,
the relevant regional operations
director will ensure a risk assessment
is completed. In addition they
will under take the necessary
investigations, due diligence and
appropriate training for staff prior to
engagement with the supplier.
E-ACT also pursues fully its
obligations for safeguarding in
protecting our pupils, staff and their
families. Should concerns about
safeguarding arise, they will be
managed and referred through our
robust safeguarding procedures.
O n t h e B o a r d o f Tr u s t e e s , G u r p r e e t
Dehal is the named trustee who
has the por tfolio interest for
safeguarding.
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Financial
statements

Governance statement
Scope of responsibility
As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that as a multi-academy
trust, E-ACT has an effective and appropriate system of control, financially, operationally and
educationally. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day operational responsibility to the chief
executive officer, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring that financial controls conform with the
requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between E-ACT and the
Secretary of State for Education.
The chief executive officer, as Accounting Officer is also responsible for reporting to the Board of
Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’
Report and in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities.
The board may be comprised of no fewer than three people and currently consists of 11, not
counting the Chief Executive Officer as an ex-officio trustee. All members of the board are unpaid
in their roles as trustees.
In December 2018, the trustees reviewed whether or not the chief executive officer should
remain as a trustee following the removal of the requirement in ESFA’s Academies Financial
Handbook 2018. Trustees agreed that having the chief executive officer as a trustee provides an
additional layer of responsibility and accountability to their role and to them as an individual so
this should continue.
The board also upholds its decision that members should not be separate from trustees and
during the financial year under review, 11 trustees were also members. The board deem that
this does ensure greater benefit for our pupils by not separating out key decision-making powers
from the strategic trustee group. A check and balance is in place in the form of the vice-chair
who continues to hold the senior independent trustee (SIT) role. This role provides support for
other trustees who may share any concerns they have with SIT if they judge that effective
governance practice is not being upheld.
At the end of the 2018-19 financial year, the Board of Trustees comprised the following:
•
•

11 trustees appointed by the members (Articles 45-50); and
The chief executive as an ex-officio trustee (Articles 50B and 57)

At the time of approving the accounts, the Board of Trustees currently comprises the following:
•

11 trustees appointed by the members (Articles 45-50)
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The following information in this governance statement relates only to the 2018-19 academic
and financial year.
Committee composition
The Board of Trustees appoints members of the Audit and Risk Committee, Finance Committee,
Education Committee, Personnel Committee and the Renumeration Committee.
In the academic year under review, the Education and Personnel Committee was split into two
distinct committees with separate purposes and Terms of Reference. In October 2019, the
creation of a Remuneration Committee was approved by the Board. This will be operational
from December 2019.
Each committee is formed of trustees voted into the committee and members of the Executive
Leadership Team. In addition, members of the Extended Executive Leadership Team have also
been invited to present and participate in meetings when the agenda items provide opportunity
to provide additional briefings or updates from personnel leading on key pieces of work across
the trust.
Both external and internal auditors are invited to attend the Audit and Risk Committee
meetings. A closed session is held between the head of internal audit and trustees prior to
every Audit and Risk Committee. A closed session is made available for external audit and
trustees prior to approval of the annual accounts.
The Board of Trustees
The Board of Trustees has formally met five times during the year.
At trustee level, the predominance of the interrogation and scrutiny happens at the following
committees: Finance, Audit and Risk, Education and Personnel.

Michael Wemms
Jean Scott
Angus Hislop
Cameron Pyke
Brian Lightman
Gurpreet Dehal

Board
5 out of 5
3 out of 5
5 out of 5
5 out of 5
5 out of 5
5 out of 5

Bryan Winchester

4 out of 5

Sean Alleyne
Theresa Keating
Pamela Coles
Nadeem Kiyani

4 out of 5
3 out of 5
5 out of 5
4 out of 5

Audit and
Risk

4 out of 4
5 out of 5
5 out of 5
4 out of 5
4 out of 5

Finance
5 out of 5

4 out of 4

Education

Personnel

5 out of 5
4 out of 5
5 out of 5
5 out of 5
1 out of 1

6 out of 6
5 out of 6
6 out of 6
6 out of 6
2 out of 2

4 out of 5

4 out of 6

5 out of 5
5 out of 5
4 out of 5
4 out of 5

Board of Trustees
The Board of Trustees meets five times a year which complements the regional governance
model and the committee cycle. The trustees do not feel that they need to meet more
frequently in order to discharge their obligations for the following reasons:
 The governance structure provides a national framework of robust challenge and
interrogation from academy level through to the trustees
 The process begins at academy level with the Raising Achievement Boards (RABs) at
which the regional directors hold headteachers and academy to account
 The outcomes from the Raising Achievement Boards (RABs) at the academies in each
region provide an accurate assessment of the key strengths and priorities in the
region, interrogated at the Regional Performance Boards. The Executive Leadership
Team hold the regional directors to account for their regions.

These committees have delegated authority on key decisions. This is set out in our Scheme of
Delegation and the chair of each committee reports back to the full Board of Trustees at each of
their meetings. Each committee also has the authority and responsibility to raise matters to the
full board for further consideration.

The Regional Performance Boards inform the national picture which the specialist trustee
committee interrogate and hold the Executive Leadership Team to account. At the full
board, the trustees challenge and interrogate trust-wide matters which informs the strategy
and direction of the trust.

Each group of meetings is called a cycle and there were five cycles in the 2018-19 academic
year. The Personnel Committee held six meetings with the extra meeting focused on the
executive pay framework.

Trustees regularly discuss strategic matters and organisational development between cycles
both as a group of trustees and with their respective Executive Leadership Team senior lead.
In addition, they are updated out of cycle on key matters such as findings from Ofsted
inspections, financial matters and findings from internal audit findings and personnel
matters relating to key appointments at E-ACT.

Attendance at committees is reported as:

Key pieces of work throughout the year have included:
• Recruitment and appointment of a new chief executive officer and her Executive
Leadership team
• Consultation and subsequent closure of Burnham Park Academy
• Approval of the addition of Bourne End Academy to strengthen the London and
Bucks region from 1 September 2018
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Approval of a revised Scheme of Delegation with further clarification using RACI
Approval of the removal of Performance-Related Pay (PRP) from September 2019
Undertaking an Internal Board Effectiveness Review
A board strategy day on 8 May 2019 focused on E-ACT culture and people
development strategy
Approving a new core purpose and strategy called Opening Minds, Opening Doors
commencing on 1 September 2019
Increased embedding of understanding of risk across the trust with the further
development of a risk appetite framework for E-ACT
Sustained a relentless focus upon the quality of education and the securing of the
mastery Rubric in use across the trust
Further embedding of the zero-based budgeting approach with regional teams
and headteachers to increase depth of understanding and application. This
model secures an levelling out of disparities between academy funding by
allocating funds on the basis of need. Critical work has developed to help all
leaders examine how the academy budgets are inextricably linked to curriculum
development, ensuring each academy has the funding required to meet the
specific needs of its pupils and staff
Approval of the 2019-20 budget

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee is a committee of the Board of Trustees. The core
purpose is to ensure the quality and integrity of the organisation’s risk management
framework; accounting and reporting practices, controls and financial statements;
legal and regulatory compliance; the auditor’s qualifications and independence; and
the performance of the company’s internal audit function and independent auditors.
The work of the Audit and Risk Committee this year has included:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Oversight of the KPMG Audit 2018-19
Closure of the 2017-18 Audit Management Letter actions, all of which are
completed
Strategic oversight and scrutiny of the second year on rolling out the Internal Audit
Plan
Continued scrutiny and challenge in relation to improving procurement
compliance and processes
Strategic review and challenge of the transfer in of the three new
academies under the due diligence processes
Recommendation of the statutory accounts to the board
Strategy oversight and scrutiny of the risk management framework, along
with scrutiny and challenge relating to the embedding of risk management
across E-ACT
Strategic oversight, development and recommendation of a risk appetite to
the Board of Trustees
Strategic oversight and interrogation around the closure of Burnham Park

•
•

Academy
Oversight of organisational whistleblowing investigations and oversight of
the investigation reports
Scrutiny and challenge of the capability matrix, designed to improve the way
risk is understood and embedded within the organisation, as well as identify
under capacity areas and understand challenges in advance

•

Oversight of organisational reputational risk and escalation of this risk within
the overall risk framework – challenge to the Executive Leadership Team
regarding how this is managed and mitigated

•

Approval of trust-wide policies on Health and Safety, Data Breach, Freedom of
Information, Gifts and Hospitality and Whistleblowing

Finance Committee
The Finance Committee is a committee of the Board of Trustees. The overall purpose
of the committee is to support the board in ensuring the maintenance of systems of
financial management and control to assure financial probity and transparency, and
effective financial stewardship and management of the organisation.
The work of the Finance Committee this year has included:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Regular review of the management accounts
Scrutiny and challenge on value for money within the trust
Strategic oversight and guidance on the continued development and
implementation of the zero-based budgeting (ZBB) approach and reviewing
how the CFO and his team are continuing to support through training the
quality and rigour of ZBB
2019-20 budget approval and recommendation to board
Oversight of the organisation’s reserves and providing strategic advice on the
development of a reserves strategy
Scrutiny of the trust-wide actions for securing increased use of the levy funding and
a scoping for apprenticeships across the trust provision programme
Strategic oversight and interrogation around the closure of Burnham Park
Academy
Approval of trust-wide policies on Charging and Remissions, trustee and
ambassador expenses and the LGPS Discretions Policy (joint approval with the
Personnel Committee

Education Committee
The Education Committee is a committee of the Board of Trustees. Its core purpose is
to provide strategic direction, scrutiny, challenge and support for educational
outcomes and curriculum development for the academies.
The work of the Education Committee this year has included:
•

Regular review of the performance of each of E-ACT’s academies,
identifying risks and challenging intervention, sustaining a robust focus
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•

•
•
•
•

•
•

upon the academies that are not rated ‘good’ by Ofsted
Review of academy exam results, at academy level and trust-wide, and
strategic oversight of improvement actions throughout the year, including
ways to enhance collaboration between academies in each region and across
regions, a new cluster model in the Midlands region used as a trial model
A review with trustees’ input related to the new Ofsted Education Inspection
Framework (EIF) and the revised Ofsted MAT Summary Evaluation process.
Strategic oversight and interrogation around the potential closure of
Burnham Park Academy
Strategic input on trust-wide education and enrichment strategies, for
example attendance, English and Maths mastery and the E-ACT pupil passport
Increased analysis of the impact of referrals and outcomes from
safeguarding matters across the trust including the scrutiny and
challenge on safeguarding internal audit findings
Regular oversight of safeguarding incidents, policy compliance and strategy
Approval of policies on Administration of medicines / support for children with
medical needs, Special Educational Needs and Learning, and Relationships and Sex
Education Policies for primary and secondary academies

Personnel Committee
The Personnel Committee is responsible for overseeing trust-wide personnel matters
and has delegated authority to appoint senior staff, as well address matters of
remuneration. From December 2019, remuneration items will be received by the new
Remuneration Committee.
The work of the Personnel Committee this year has included:
• Implementation of the new people strategy across E-ACT and associated executive
pay framework
• Strategic oversight and advice on the removal of Performance-Related Pay
• Strategic oversight of the trust-wide continuing professional development
plan and external HR provision
• Approval of Executive Leadership Team objectives for the year
• Strategic oversight of the trust-wide mental health strategy and analysis of the
impact of the MHFA training programme with a comprehensive discussion with the
E-ACT national lead for mental health
•

Strategic oversight and monitoring of staff vacancies, recruitment and retention

•

Reviewing the standing items and focus items for the five cycles of the Personnel
Committee

•

Approval of trust-wide policies on Equality and Diversity, Equal Opportunities,
Capability, Code of Conduct, Flexible Working, special leave, References,
Recruitment and Selection and joint approval of LGPS Discretions Policy (with the
Finance Committee)

Review of value for money
As Accounting Officer, the chief executive has responsibility for ensuring that the
academy trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting
officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal
outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
The Accounting Officer considers whether the academy trust’s use of its resources has
provided good value for money during the academic year, and reports to the trustees
highlighting the areas where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy trust
has delivered improved value for money during the year by:
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Continuation of embedding a Zero-Based Budgeting approach to annual
budgeting and forecasting
Increased transparency in internal management reporting with all members of
an Extended ELT being part of the group budgeting process and all having sight
of every cost in the group
Facilitated peer to peer challenge on educational and operational spend during the
year
Setting value for money targets for the group as a whole and new regional
targets set by the regions for the 2019-20 academic year
Benchmarking against set VFM targets and other academy trusts
Increased focus on national procurement contracts and use of regional
procurements where this is not possible
Continued drive of supplier rationalisation
Enhancing the procurement data available
Identifying and meeting with key suppliers

System of internal control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a level that sits within an
appetite agreed for the trust rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness.
The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and their impact should they be
realised. It also considers how risks are managed and whether they are deemed efficient,
effective and economic.
The system of internal control utilises a number of sources including internal scrutiny, user
experience, and objective data sets. These are combined to provide trustees and our
regulator with assurance that designed frameworks are functioning effectively and in line
with expectations. The System of Internal Control works together with the external control
functions operated by Ofsted and our external auditors, KPMG.
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The system of internal control has been in place in E-ACT multi-academy trust for the period
1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and financial statements.



Student safety on trips and visits



Health and safety

Capacity to handle risk



Ring fenced funding - pupil premium grant, catch-up funding, sport premium
and post-16 bursary



Governance and statutory compliance



Capital procurement



Performance management procedures

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which E-ACT is exposed, together with
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate
those risks.
The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is an effective process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the academy trust’s significant risks that has been in place for the
period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.
The risk and control framework

The internal audit function within the trust meets the statutory financial obligations within
the Academies Financial Handbook. The function also exceeds this by undertaking wider
reviews across all facets of the trust and is driven by continual improvement. Validation of EACT values and delivery of regional and national priorities identified by trustees.

The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties
and a system of delegation and accountability.

Throughout 2018-19 the Internal Audit team delivered 62 audit reviews and 21 follow-up
reviews (FURs) covering a range of both academy and regional reviews covering 26 aspects
of education and operations.

In particular, it includes:
 Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget
and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of
Trustees

The head of internal audit and risk management has a closed meeting with the trustees of
the Audit and Risk Committee prior to the start of their committee meetings. The head of
internal audit and risk management holds regular discussions with board members. In
addition, internal audits are discussed at the committee most appropriate to the particular
aspect under review and when an audit involves trust-wide analysis, it is also discussed at
the Board of Trustee meeting. The Internal Audit team has delivered their work in
accordance with the approved internal audit plan for the year.



Reviews by the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee of reports which indicate
financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans,
capital works and expenditure programmes



Setting targets to measure financial and other performance



Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) policies and
processes



Delegation of authority and segregation of duties



Identification and management of risks

Following the decision of the Board of Trustees to employ its own internal audit function led
by the head of internal audit and risk management, the function has been in operation
during the year under review.
In that time the following internal audits were undertaken and include:


Testing of purchase systems and payment systems



Testing of control accounts and bank reconciliation



Financial management
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Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, the chief executive has responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the
review has been informed by:
•
•
•

The work of the internal auditor
The work of the external auditor
The work of the Executive Leadership Team within the multi-academy trust
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal
control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their
review of the system of internal control by the Audit and Risk Committee and a plan
to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place.
Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 12 December
2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Going concern
To assess the organisation’s position and ensure E-ACT remains a going concern, the Board of
Trustees have taken into consideration several key factors, which include:







The level of reserves currently held by E-ACT
The 19-20 budget and future years’ forecasts
Risks facing E-ACT and the management of those risks
Increasing numbers of pupils and projected pupil numbers
The strengthening of our regions
The risk adverse approach to cash management

The Board of Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the trust has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, E-ACT continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial review
During the year ended 31 August 2019, the total expenditure (excluding restricted fixed assets and
pension funds) was £116m (2018: £101m) and income (excluding restricted fixed assets and pension
funds) was £117m (2018: £101m). Overall, there has been a small increase in restricted general funds
reserves of £0.1m and a small increase in unrestricted fund reserves of £0.9m. £0.5m of unrestricted
and £0.6m of restricted general funds were applied against restricted general funds expenditure.
Restricted fixed asset income for the year was £3.1m, and total restricted fixed asset expenditure during
the year amounted to £4.1m. The difference here was funded by a transfer from revenue to capital
funding.
At 31 August 2019, Restricted Reserves totalled £130m and Unrestricted Reserves totalled £4.2m. The
Restricted Reserves comprise £177m surplus in Fixed Asset Reserves, £48m deficit in Pension
Reserves, and £0.7m surplus in Restricted General Funds.

Michael Wemms

Jane Millward

Chair of E-ACT

Accounting Officer

The small increases in reserves are ensuring that E-ACT has some reserve funds to help deal with any
future financial shocks or emergencies.
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis but the aforementioned deficit resulting
from the Local Government Pension Funds is required to be shown as a liability on the balance sheet
by Financial Reporting Standards (FRS).
The principal sources of income are government grants accounting for 98% of E-ACT’s income.
Revenue and small capital grants are paid annually to each academy, together with a larger capital
grant that is received by E-ACT and allocated, on a needs basis, to the academies. The trustees
continue to deploy all net incoming resources to investing in the educational purposes and fabric of our
academies, although funding from this source continues to get tighter, especially taking into
consideration the lag in funding in academies with increasing pupil numbers and inflation not being
offset by increases in the funding. These grants and associated expenditure are shown as Restricted
Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.
As an academy trust, the parents and pupils in E-ACT’s academies have the assurance that all of our
income must be and is applied for educational purposes. As an educational charity, E-ACT benefits
from tax exemption on our educational activities and on its investment income and gains, provided
these are applied for our charitable aims. E-ACT is also entitled to an 80% reduction on our business
rates on the property we occupy for our charitable purposes. The financial benefits we receive from
these tax exemptions are all applied for educational purposes. E-ACT does, however, pay tax as an
employer through the national insurance contributions that it makes.
In addition to the very substantial benefits E-ACT’s academies brings to its pupils, the local community
and society through the education it offers, our programme of community interaction and the letting out
of our premises enables an even larger number of people to take advantage of our facilities.
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E-ACT academies’ ability to undertake effective financial forward planning is heavily dependent on DfE
funding announcements. E-ACT expects to continue to have very challenging savings targets to meet
over the coming years – at a time when E-ACT needs to increase its investment in its academies to
achieve its targeted educational aspirations

Reserves policy
E-ACT is predominately funded on a monthly basis by DfE grants and income which fairly matches
expenditure, with around 77% of this being spent on teaching and other staffing.
The Master Funding agreement, which was agreed with the DfE and signed by the Board of Trustees in
March 2016, enables funding to be carried forward without restriction.
At the year end, reserves amounted to £4.8m, which is an increase of £921k from the previous year.
This is considered to be low, bearing in mind the trust’s monthly operational costs. The trustees’ aim is
to manage the reserves in line with the Department for Education’s guidance on the carry forward of
reserves.

E-ACTs strategy continues to centre on getting the best possible outcomes for each and every one of
our students. In order to mitigate against future concerns on funding, E-ACT is of the view that if we
deliver high quality education then our academies will have higher intakes of students and hence
funding will increase.
The level of future funding from the government
Whilst the national funding formula (NFF) is getting closer, there still remains uncertainty on the levels
of funding, especially when considering the national political landscape. The potential specific funding
risks are as follows;


The move towards a National Funding Formula continues as a key risk. The NFF will not be
fully rolled out until 2020-21 with the expected result being that it will produce winners and
losers on a large scale. Many, but not all, of E-ACT’s academies are situated in poorly funded
areas and so E-ACT expects that these academies should benefit from the move to a national
formula. Unfortunately, this cannot be guaranteed to be an immediate benefit to us.



Pupil Premium continues as a significant source of funding for our academies, such that there
is a financial risk if the funding is not continued in some form as we move forward. This source
of funding is directed to help the most vulnerable students in E-ACT’s academies and a
reduction would adversely affect their education. Pupil premium funding is around £9m per
annum. The risk is managed by our regions and academies having a clear understanding of
what activities they use Pupil Premium funding for which is borne out by E-ACTs ‘Zero-Based
Budgeting’ approach. This ensures the academies are in a good position to plan any potential
budget reductions should they be forced to do so.



16–19 funding not increasing in line with inflation creates a squeeze on resources and has
resulted in some sixth forms not being financially viable. E-ACT has taken the decision in some
instances to suspend certain academies sixth forms to ensure there is not a need to use
funding from other sources. As part of the annual budget cycle E-ACT reviews the financial
viability of all of our sixth form provision.



The School Condition allocations (Capital Grants) continue to be short of what our condition
surveys state as being required. Whilst E-ACTs allocation has increased due to additional
schools joining the group we are not able to cover all the projects. Spend in this area is
prioritised based on Health and Safety and Safeguarding. Looking forward it is expected that
this grant will be based on the condition of our academies rather than be a multiplier of pupil
numbers. At the moment though E-ACT continues to expect year on year funding to remain
similar. E-ACT has no access to other funds for major (and often, by their nature, urgent)
requirements, such as boiler, roof and window replacements, or for any significant ongoing
general refurbishment of buildings or other infrastructure. The risks in this area are mitigated to
some extent by employing a national estates manager, who works with the regions of E-ACT
and prioritises expenditure, and E-ACT does have some financial reserves which can be used
in an emergency.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) liabilities are recognised in the accounts as a
significant deficit within restricted funds (£48.0m); however, this does not mean there is an immediate
liability for the total amount. Rather, the balance reflects the potential for increases in employer pension
contributions in later years to finance the deficits.
E-ACT has no recourse to other revenue income streams of any significance and maintaining a level of
reserves is essential to protect the trust against future potential financial risk. The operating reserves at
31 August 2019 total £4.8m (£4.2m unrestricted plus £0.6m restricted). In 2016, the trustees set a target
level of reserves for the organisation as follows:




5% of turnover for general use linked to E-ACT’s charitable objects
1% of turnover to fund future estates needs
1% of turnover to fund future ICT needs

These are long-term aims and the charitable trust’s reserves are currently below these aspirations.
Academies, regions and the national teams prepare financial forward plans for at least the next three
years alongside the annual budget and actively maintain a risk register to enable the trust to foresee
potential issues that might affect the viability.

Investment policy
The Board of Trustees, on the recommendation of the Finance Committee, approved a revised
Treasury Management Policy in July 2014, which remains in place. The principal consideration in this
policy is risk minimisation. Therefore, temporary cash deposits are invested with UK high street banks
only. E-ACT does not hold any other investments.

Principal risks and uncertainties
E-ACT has continued to develop its management of risk exposure and build upon the strength of
systems seen in previous years. E-ACTs internal audit and risk team remain strong systems for risk
management to keep it embedded across the academies within the organisation. Principle risks and
uncertainties for 2018-19 are as follows:
Apprenticeship Levy
The effective use of the apprenticeship levy has been a risk across the year. Having adequate access
to stable provision to develop areas of the trust and achieve value for money has been a challenge.
The trust is working alongside new apprentice providers to develop strategies that support our people
strategy as well as provide quality programmes, schemes and support.
Educational performance
For the communities we serve, E-ACT’s objective is to give every pupil in every one of its academies
the best possible education. E-ACT academies are located in some of the most challenging areas in the
country, and the trust works to support both teaching and professional services staff employed by EACT to raise pupils’ attainment alongside their life experiences.

Retention and recruitment of staff
The retention and recruitment of teaching and professional services staff continues to be a challenge.
Across the sector it is well publicised that there is a shortage of teaching professionals and E-ACT is
exposed to this. Without the right people in all areas of the organisation, it is difficult to meet educational
and operational objectives. Whilst E-ACT has succession planning and talent management in its
regions, this continues to be an uncertainty. E-ACT has recently appointed a people & organisational
development director who will help coordinate work in this area; E-ACT also is the first multi-academy
trust to move away from ‘performance-related pay’ (PRP) and hence has started a journey on creating
the best possible culture for our pupils and staff.
Recruitment of pupils
As discussed in the risks on funding above, the popularity of E-ACT’s academies is a direct
consequence of the educational outcomes that we achieve for our pupils. Failure to deliver improved
standards will inevitably lead to a drop in pupils and hence a drop in income in future years.

Page 71

Reorganisation costs
As a multi-academy trust, E-ACT is committed to ensuring that pubic money is spent in the most
efficient and effective way in order to produce the best educational outcomes for our pupils. If
necessary, costs of any planned reorganisations and capability procedures that are beyond thresholds
that the DfE is willing to fund will fall to be funded by the academy trust.
EU Referendum result ‘Brexit’
The continued uncertainty of ‘Brexit’ and the impact it will have on industry and commerce across the
UK.

Funds held as Custodian Trustees on behalf of others
E-ACT does not hold any funds as custodian trustee.

Auditor
Insofar as the trustees are aware:



Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance
As accounting officer of E-ACT, I have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of
trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the
funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As
part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial
Handbook 2018.
I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of funding under the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.
I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
trustees and ESFA:

there is no relevant audit information of which the academy trust’s auditor is unaware
the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information

The trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees,
as the company’s directors on 12 December 2019 and signed on the board’s behalf by:
Jane Millward
Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer
12 December 2019

Michael Wemms
Chair of E-ACT
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Statement of trustees' responsibilities for the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF E-ACT

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable trust for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Annual Accounts Requirements issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law
and regulations.

Opinion

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the trustees are required to:
 Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
 Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2018 to 2019
 Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
 State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable company will continue in business

We have audited the financial statements of E-ACT (“the charitable company”) for the year ended 31
August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, Balance Sheet, and Cash flow
Statement, and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.
In our opinion the financial statements:


give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2019, and
of the charitable company’s incoming resources and application of resources, including the
charitable company’s income and expenditure, for the year then ended;



have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland;



have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and



have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the trust
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the charitable company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opinion.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA\DfE have
been applied for the purposes intended.

Going concern

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 12 December 2019.

__________________________________
Michael Wemms

__________________________________
Jane Millward

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or the company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the
group and the company’s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that
there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as
a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern
period”).
We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
statements. In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the
Company’s business model, including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the
Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have
nothing to report in these respects.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the group or
the company will continue in operation.
Other information

Chair of E-ACT

Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer

The trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Reference and Administrative
Details, the trustees’ Annual Report and Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as
explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:


we have not identified material misstatements in the other information;
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in our opinion the information given in the trustees' Annual Report, which constitutes the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year, is consistent with the financial statements;
and

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on
Regularity to E-ACT and the Education and Skills Funding Agency



in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 14 December 2017 and further to
the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the
Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019, we have carried out an engagement to obtain
limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by E-ACT
during the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:


adequate accounting records have not been kept by the charitable company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or



the charitable company’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or



certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or



we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
Trustees’ responsibilities
As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 74, the trustees (who are the Directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the charitable company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.
A fuller description of our responsibilities
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

is

provided

on

the

FRC’s

website

at

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the charitable company and its members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.
Michael Rowley (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
One Snow Hill
Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham

This report is made solely to E-ACT (the academy trust) and ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy
trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the academy trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have
formed.
Respective responsibilities of the academy trust’s accounting officer and the reporting
accountant
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of the academy trust’s funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 21st April 2016 and the Academies
Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed
and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.
Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our
profession’s ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with
our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019.
We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which
suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the
period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have not been applied to purposes intended by
Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.
Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to
2019 issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to
express a negative conclusion on regularity.
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement.
Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.
Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity
and propriety of the academy trust’s income and expenditure.
The work undertaken to draw our conclusion included:


Documenting the framework of authorities which govern the activities of the academy trust;
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Reviewing the evidence supporting the representations included in the Accounting Officer’s
statement on regularity, propriety and compliance with the framework of authorities;
Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general control environment
and any weaknesses in internal controls identified by our audit of the financial statements;
Reviewing the output from the self-assessment questionnaires completed by the Regional
Operational Directors and the Headteachers on behalf of the Governing Body;
Testing compliance with delegated authorities for a sample of material transactions;
Testing transactions with connected parties to determine whether the trust has complied with the
‘at cost’ requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018;
Confirming through enquiry and sample testing that the trust has complied with its procurement
policies and that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and
Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether it was
significant enough to be referred to in our regularity report.

This list is not exhaustive and we performed additional procedures designed to provide us with sufficient
appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity consistent with the requirements of
Annex B of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019.

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September to 31
August 2019 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
One Snow Hill
Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham
B4 6GH

Statement of financial activities for year ended 31 August 2019 (including income and expenditure
account)
All Academies

Income and endowments
from:
Donations and Capital grant
Transfers of existing
academies
Transfer from local authority on
conversion
Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust’s
educational operations
Teaching Schools
Other trading activities
Investments

Unrestricted
Funds

Restricted
General
Funds

Notes

£’000

£’000

3

148

4

455

5
6

1,645
105

Total
Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities:
Grants
Academy trust educational
operations
Teaching schools
Total

2,353

Other recognised gains and
(losses)
Actuarial (losses) gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes.
Net movement in Funds
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward
Total funds carried forward

Total
31 August
2019

Total
31 August
2018

£’000

£’000

3,119

3,267

(1,547)

12,150

10,603

(1,122)

11,640

10,518

7,492

114,723

99,636

114,268

3,369

1,645
105
111,599

26,909

1,545
56

140,861

112,098

7
8
9

Net income / (expenditure)
Transfer between funds

Restricted
Fixed
Asset
Funds
£’000

19

116

116

126

993

117,744

13,162

131,899

113,990

993

117,860

13,162

132,015

114,116

13,747

8,846

(2,018)

1,124

-

-

1,360

(6,261)

(506)

(618)

30

(10,830)

12,655

14,871

(1,984)

10,637

(10,830)
854

(17,709)

3,338

(29,621)

162,300

136,017

125,380

4,192

(47,330)

177,171

134,033

136,017

Under E-ACT’s funding agreement, the trust is permitted to transfer funds from within unrestricted funds to
restricted general funds, and also from restricted general funds to restricted fixed asset funds. During the year and
as planned, the trust moved unrestricted funds to cover educational spend and fixed asset spend.
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Balance Sheet 31 August 2019

Fixed Assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Current Assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand
Liabilities
Creditors: Amount falling
due within one year
Net current assets

Notes
13
14

33
177,138

Cash Flow from operating activities

87
162,213
28
5,287
10,168
15,483

17

(15,034)
4,849

(11,555)
3,928

182,020

166,228

-

-

182,020

166,228

(47,987)

(30,211)

134,033

136,017

177,170
658
(47,987)

162,300
590
(30,211)

129,841

132,679

4,192

3,338

134,033

136,017

18

30

Total net assets
Funds of the academy
trust:

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 August 2019
Notes

E-ACT
31 August
2018
£’000

32
5,414
14,437
19,883

Net Assets excluding
pension scheme liability
Defined benefit pensions
scheme liability

E-ACT
31 August
2019
£’000

15
16

Total assets less current
liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling
due after more than one
year

Company Number 0652 6376

31 August
2019
£’000

31 August
2018
£’000

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

23

5,171

2,535

Cash flows from investing activities

25

(902)

(897)

Cash flows from financing activities

24

-

-

4,269

1,638

10,168

8,530

14,437

10,168

Change in cash and cash equivalents in reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2018
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2019

26

Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund
Restricted income fund
Pension Reserve

19
19
19

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

19

Total funds

The financial statements on pages 59 to 104 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on
12 December 2019 and signed on their behalf by:

__________________________________

__________________________________

Michael Wemms

Jane Millward

Chair of E-ACT

Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer
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The academy trust is benefiting from the ESFA’s (Priority Schools Building Programme). The
funding for the programme is not recognised as a capital grant until there is unconditional
entitlement from costs being incurred, and the development occurring on a site where the
academy trust controls through lease the site where the development is occurring.

Notes to the financial statements
1. Accounting policies
Basis of preparation



Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised
in the Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no
performance-related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.



Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related
conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.



Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to
the extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services

E-ACT’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance
and position are set out within this report and the trustees report. In addition, the financial statements
include the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its financial risk
management objectives, details of its financial policy, and its exposures to risk. E-ACT has some
financial resources in the form of reserves together with long-term contracts under the Master Funding
Agreement's with the Department for Education. Consequently, the Trustees believe that the company
is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertain national economic
outlook.



Donated goods, facilities and services
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less
the expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in
stock and ‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged
against ‘Income from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from
other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low
value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. The income
is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of
at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded
that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trusts ability to continue as a going
concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements.



Transfer on conversion

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities
SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2017 to 2018 issued by ESFA, the charities Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2006.
E-ACT meets the definition of a public-funded benefit entity under FRS 102.
Going concern

Income

Where assets and liabilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an academy,
the transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the
point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of
income is recognised as transfer on conversion within Donations and capital grant income to
the net assets received.


Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the
academy trust, the transferred net assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the
balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust.
An equal amount of income is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into the
academy trust within Donations and capital grant income to the net assets required

All incoming resources are recognised when E-ACT has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable
and the amount can be measured reliably.


Grants receivable
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance
of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the
relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any
performance related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performancerelated conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is
accrued.
General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of Financial Activities in the year for
which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.
Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant.
Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.
The annual School Condition Allocation (SCA) grant is an exception, as the grant covers a
period of April to March as opposed to E-ACTs financial year, the grant is deferred accordingly.

Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust



Donated fixed assets (excluding Transfers on conversion/into the academy trust)
Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain
is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the
appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance
with the academy trust’s accounting policies.



Interest receivable
Interest earned on cash balances is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities in the
period in which it is receivable.
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Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to
a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of
each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved
in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that
activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not
attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the
use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges
allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.




Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust’s educational operations, including support
costs and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable
activities.
All resources expended are inclusive of any irrecoverable VAT.

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible assets costing £500 or more are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits
are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially
recognised at cost are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for
impairment. Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of
each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:


Purchased computer software – over 3 years, or useful economic life.

Tangible fixed assets
Assets £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.
Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
Government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost or valuation and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed
asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the balance sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful lives, as follows:

Freehold Buildings – over 50 years, or useful economic life.



Leasehold Land – over the length of lease, or useful economic life.



Long leasehold buildings – lower of 50 years, length of lease, or useful economic life.



Short leasehold buildings – over the period of the lease



ICT equipment and software – 3 years, or useful economic life.



Fixtures, fittings and equipment – 5 years, or useful economic life.



Motor vehicles – 5 years, or useful economic life.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value
of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.
Liabilities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a
past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.
Investments
The Trust has no subsidiaries
Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows;
Financial assets – trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
Cash at bank – is classified as a basic financial instrument measured at face value.
Financial liabilities – trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 17 and 18. Taxation and social security and not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
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financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to a charity’s wholly owned
subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Stock
Unsold uniforms and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Taxation
E-ACT is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256
of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes.
Pensions benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(‘TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between
employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes
and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.
The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and discounted
at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at
each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and
the costs of scheme inductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation
and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets
at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference
between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education & Skills Funding Agency.
Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Fixed assets are depreciated over their expected useful lives taking into account residual values, where
appropriate. Factors taken into consideration in reaching such decisions include the economic viability
and expected future financial performance of the asset.
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 30, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 August 2018. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

2. General Academy Grant (GAG)

In line with the funding agreement. E-ACT is not subject to limits on the carry forward of GAG

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
Defined contribution scheme
i) Head office Pension Scheme
Head office employees historically have had the option of joining a defined contribution scheme
operated by Scottish Widows. The pension costs for the scheme represent the contributions payable in
the period. This is a defined contribution scheme, and contributions for the year amounted to £36k.
Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.
Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed
by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.
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7. Expenditure
3. Donated and capital grants

Capital grants
Donated Fixed assets
Other donations
Pension liability transferred in

Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

Restricted
Funds
£’000

148
148

3,119
23,790
(2,669)
24,240

4. Funding for the academy trust’s Education Operational
Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

DfE/EFA Grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start Up Grants
Other DfE/EFA grants
Other Government grants
Local authority grants
Special educational projects
Other income from the academy
trust’s educational operations

5. Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Income from other charitable activities
Income from ancillary trading activities

6. Investment income

Short term deposit

Total 31
August 2019
£’000

Total 31
August 2018
£’000

3,119
23,790
148
(2,669)
24,388

2,816
9,174
553
(1,682)
10,861

Total 31
August 2019
£’000

Total 31
August 2018
£’000

-

109,074
325
1,529
110,928

109,074
325
1,529
110,928

92,908
162
512
96,582

-

3,340
3,340

3,340
3,340

2,706
2,706

455

348

114,723

99,636

Total 31
August 2019
£’000

Total 31
August 2018
£’000

455

Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

114,268

Restricted
Funds
£’000

767

-

767

642

878

-

878

903

1,645

-

1,645

1,545

Total 31
August 2019
£’000

Total 31
August 2018
£’000

105
105

56
56

Unrestricted
Funds
£’000
105
105

Non Pay Expenditure
Premises
Other Costs
£’000
£’000

£’000
Expenditure on raising funds
Academy’s educational operations:
Direct Costs
Allocated Support costs

Total 31
August 2019
£’000

-

-

-

-

74,555
16,508

7,521

8,015
25,416

82,570
49,445

Total 31
August
2018
£’000

-

72,376
41,740

Teaching School

91,063

7,521

132,015

33,431

114,116

Please refer to note 30 for further detail of resources expanded, on an academy by academy basis.

Restricted
Funds
£’000

455

Staff Costs

Restricted
Funds
£’000
-

Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes:
Total
31 August
2019
Operating lease rentals
Depreciation
(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
(included within Charitable Activities –
Academy trust educational operations)
Fees payable to auditors for:
- Audit
- Other services

Total
31 August
2018

249
8,558
4,415
57

323
8,579
60
-

74
0

75
8

Included within expenditure are the following transactions.

Compensation payments
Gifts made by the trust
Fixed asset losses
Stock losses
Unrecoverable debts
Cash losses

Ex-gratia payments

Individual items above £5,000
Amount £ Reason
–
–
4,415,621 Partial Impairment of Royton &
Crompton building
–
–
–
–
Individual items
Amount £ Reason/nature
–

Total £
–
–
4,415,621
–
–
–
–
Total £
–

The legal authority sought to make ex-gratia payments was in compliance with the Academies Financial Handbook
2017, being delegated authority or approval from the Education Funding Agency. For the Financial Year ended
31 August 2018, there were no ex-gratia payments.

8. Analysis of grants

Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

Restricted
Funds
£’000

Restricted
Asset
Funds
£’000

Total 31
Funds
18/19
£’000

Pre-opening grants

-

-

-

-

Mat Development fund

-

116

-

116

EIG Grant
Support Grant

-

-

-

-

-

116

-

116
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9. Charitable activities

d. Higher paid staff

Total
31 August
2019
82,570
49,445
132,015

Direct costs – educational operations
Support costs – educational operations

Total
31 August
2018
72,376
41,740
114,116

Analysis of Support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation
Technology costs
Premises costs
Other support costs
Governance costs
Total support costs

Total
2019
£000

Total
2018
£000

14,896
8,746
1,979
7,730
15,783
311
49,445

13,156
8,597
1,994
6,622
10,980
391
41,740

10. Staff
a. Staff costs during the period were

Total 31
August 2019
£’000

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Apprenticeship Levy
Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Total 31
August 2018
£’000

67,037
6,546
10,190
320
84,093

59,204
5,771
8,761
281
74,017

4,389
713
5,102

3,511
512
4,024

226
487
713

278
234
512

Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy Payments
Severance Payments
Other restructuring costs

b. Non Statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are 6 non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £55,589
(2018 £64,000) Individually the payments made were £15,000, £13,844, £10,000, £8,932, £4,020 and £3,793

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

£60,001–£70,000
£70,001–£80,000
£80,001–£90,000
£90,001–£100,000
£100,001–£110,000
£110,001–£120,000
£120,001–£130,000
£130,001–£140,000
£140,001–£150,000
£150,001–£160,000
£160,001–£170,000

2019
(No.)

2018
(No.)

37
19
11
5
4
2
2
1
1
1

49
17
7
8
6
3
3
2
-

e. Key Management Personnel
The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees (whom work on a voluntary basis) ,the
senior management team and regional senior personnel as listed on below The total amount of employee benefits
(including employer pension contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the
academy trust was £4,932,852 (2018: £4,162,776).
Included in the above figures are: Central Executive Leadership Team, Regional Education Directors, Regional
Operations Directors and Academy Head Teachers

f. Central Services

The E-ACT trust has provided the following central services to its Academies during the year:
Chief Executives Office, Business Planning and Strategy, Central HR and Training, Legal, Internal and External
Communications, IT, Central Finance and Procurement, Governance, Educational Improvement and Estates
Support.
As from 2017 the academy trust, in line with the funding agreement with the Department of Education pools the
General Annual Grant (GAG) and therefore does not recharge out central services.

11. Related Party Transactions – Trustees Remuneration and Expenses
One trustee has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the academy trust.
The chief executive officer and other staff trustees (of which there are none) only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.
The value of trustee’s remuneration and other benefits was as follows:
Remuneration from 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the trust during the period was as follows:
2019
Teachers
Administration and Support
Management

1,063
1,336
146
2,545

2018
931
1,171
162
2,264

David Moran (Chief Executive Officer Sep-Apr):
Employer’s Pension contributions:

£ 105,966
£ 6,358

Jane Millward (Chief Executive Officer May-Aug):
Employer’s Pension contributions:

£
£

54,454
8,974

During the period ended 31 August 2019, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £2,784 (2018: £4,840) were
reimbursed or paid directly to 6 trustees (2018: 7 trustees).
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12. Trustees’ and Officers’ Insurance

15. Stock

E-ACT is a member of the DfE’s RPA (Risk Protection Arrangement). The risk protection arrangement is an
alternative to commercial insurance for academy trusts. Under RPA, the UK government covers the losses of
commercial insurance including trustees and officers liability cover.

Clothing

13. Intangible Fixed Assets

Computer
Software
£’000

16. Debtors

£’000

732
3
735

732
3
735

Amortisation
At 1 September 2018
Charged in the year
Disposals
At 31 August 2019

645
57
702

645
57
702

87
33

87
33

Trade Debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
VAT recoverable
Intercompany debtor
Other debtors

Leasehold
Land and
Buildings

£’000

£’000

Furniture
and
Equipment
£’000

Computer
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

£’000

£’000

17. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Assets in the
course of
construction
£’000

Total
31 August
2019
£’000

Cost
At 1 September 2018
Acquisitions
Additions
Disposals
Impairment
At 31 August 2019

5,556
7,300
130
(4,648)
8,338

185,327
16,300
1,767
203,394

12,227
108
1,346
13,681

12,737
82
828
13,647

130
16
146

14
23
37

215,991
23,790
4,110
(4,648)
239,243

Depreciation
At 1 September 2018
Charged in the year
Disposals
Impairment
At 31 August 2019

3,021
331
(232)
3,120

31,338
5,858
37,196

7,234
1,901
9,135

12,082
457
12,539

103
12
115

-

53,778
8,559
(232)
62,105

Net book values
At 31 August 2018
At 31 August 2019

2,535
5,218

153,989
166,198

4,993
4,546

655
1,108

27
31

14
37

162,213
177,138

Trade creditors
Other taxation and social security
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2018
Resources deferred in year
Amounts released from previous years
Deferred income at 31 August 2019

The academy trust’s transactions relating to land and buildings includes;


Total 31
August
2019
£’000
510
4,044
720
140
5,414

Total 31
August
2018
£’000
84
4,068
702
432
5,287

Debtors are accounted for at the point when they become due and are calculated for on an accruals basis.

14. Tangible Fixed Assets
Freehold
Land and
Buildings

Total 31
August
2018
£’000
28
28

Total

Cost
At 1 September 2018
Additions
Disposals
At 31 August 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 August 2018
At 31 August 2019

Total 31
August
2019
£’000
32
32

The taking up of a lease on Badock’s Wood Academy, Bourne End Academy and the freehold of Royton & Crompton
Academy from 1st September 2018 for nil consideration.

Total 31
August
2019
£’000
2,525
1,666
2,843
8,000
15,034

Total 31
August
2018
£’000
2,238
1,499
2,466
5,351
11,555

Total 31
August
2019
£’000
2,826
4,175
(2,826)
4,175

At the balance sheet date, the academy trust was holding funds received in advance for devolved formula capital
(£775k) grant for 2019/20 academic year and SCA funding (£2,341k).

18. Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

Other Creditors

2019
£’000

–
–

2018
£’000

–
–

The impairment relates to the Royton building which at year end was only partly in use and being prepared for demolition, due to
the new school building coming into use September 2019
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19. Funds

Restricted General Funds
General annual grant (GAG)
Start-up grant
Pupil Premium
Other grants
Pension Reserve
Restricted fixed asset
funds
DfE/EFA capital grants
Capital expenditure from
GAG

Total restricted funds
Total Unrestricted funds
Total funds

Total funds analysis by academy

Balance at
1 September
2018
£’000

Transfer in
during the
year
£’000

Income

£’000

Expenditure

£’000

Gains,
Losses and
Transfers
£’000

Balance at
31 August
2019
£’000

590
(30,211)
(29,621)

(2,669)
(2,669)

100,182
325
8,893
4,868
114,268

(99,497)
(325)
(8,893)
(4,868)
(15,107)
(128,690)

(618)
(618)

657
(47,987)
(47,330)

162,300
162,300

23,790

3,119

(13,162)

1,124

23,790

3,119

(13,162)

1,124

177,171
177,171

132,679

21,121

117,387

(141,852)

506

129,841

3,338

-

2,353

(993)

(506)

4,192

136,017

21,121

119,740

(142,845)

0

134,033

Funds balances at 31 August 2019 were allocated as follows:

2019
£’000
4,849
4,849

2018
£’000
3,928
3,928

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

177,171
(47,987)
129,184

162,300
(30,211)
132,089

Total

134,033

136,017

E-ACT Group
Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserve

Operating Funds for the Group are in surplus of £4,849k. these are presented as a Group balance due to E-ACT
adopting the new funding agreement in 2016 and being able to ‘pool’ GAG income. The group continues to work
on extended financial plans to ensure financial stability for Academies and students.
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
All funds will be applied to education and the support of education for E-ACT students in line with E-ACT charitable
objectives. Due to E-ACT using the latest DfE funding agreement funds are retained centrally.
£70K is being held with reserves for artificial football pitch maintenance obligations

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Balance at
1 September
2017
£’000
Restricted General Funds
General annual grant (GAG)
Start-up grant
Pupil Premium
Other grants
Pension Reserve

Restricted fixed asset
funds
DfE/EFA capital grants
Capital expenditure from
GAG

Total restricted funds
Total Unrestricted funds
Total funds

Transfer in
during the
year
£’000

Income

Expenditure

£’000

£’000

Gains,
Losses and
Transfers
£’000

Balance at
31 August
2018
£’000

349
130
(36,563)
(36,084)

(1,682)
(1,682)

87,828
162
8,079
3,219
99,288

(88,302)
(162)
(8,209)
(3,219)
8,034
(91,858)

715
715

590
(30,211)
(29,621)

158,431
158,431

9,174

2,816

(8,597)

476

9,174

2,816

(8,597)

476

162,300
162,300

122,347

7,492

102,104

(100,455)

1,191

132,679

3,033

-

2,502

(1,007)

(1,191)

3,338

125,380

7,492

104,606

(101,461)

0

136,017
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Total cost analysis by academy

20. Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2019 are represented by:

Teaching and
Educational
Support Staff
Costs
£’000

Other
Support
Staff
Costs
£’000

Educational
supplies

Other Cost
(excluding
depreciation)

Total 2019

£’000

£’000

£’000

Total
2018
£’000

Blackley Academy
Oldham Academy
Parkwood Academy
Pathways Academy
Royton & Crompton
Regional
North Region Total

1,612
4,411
3,511
1,608
4,624
500
16,266

185
491
171
166
676
1,203
2,892

378
917
521
260
580
109
2,765

185
529
393
194
531
126
1,958

2,361
6,347
4,595
2,227
6,412
1,939
23,881

2,378
5,937
4,802
2,335
1,730
17,183

Bourne End Academy
Braintcroft Academy
Burnham Park Academy
Chalfont Valley Academy
City Heights Academy
The Crest Academy
Denham Green Academy
Regional
South & Bucks Region
Total

3,147
2,474
1,540
539
3,845
4,690
742
861
17,838

234
158
220
95
294
471
148
1,360
2,980

384
317
295
130
656
839
126
325
3,072

631
294
321
148
438
941
119
(8)
2,884

4,396
3,243
2,376
912
5,233
6,941
1,135
2,538
26,774

1,367
2,793
940
5,666
7,249
1,031
1,802
20,848

1,038
1,388
1,354
1,193
1,237
1,452
882
8,544

65
117
184
111
62
149
1,007
1,695

168
244
278
230
229
273
65
1,487

123
176
131
136
108
138
187
999

1,394
1,925
1,947
1,670
1,636
2,012
2,141
12,725

1,927
1,993
1,727
1,638
1,936
1,809
11,030

DSLV
Parker Academy
Heartlands Academy
Mansfield Green Academy
Meritts Brook Academy
Nechells Academy
North Birmingham Academy
Reedswood Academy
Shenley Academy
West Walsall Academy
Willenhall Academy
Regional
Midlands Region Total

3,646
3,046
3,390
1,490
812
803
4,269
1,500
4,161
3,744
4,102
431
31,394

457
394
261
281
59
77
315
190
328
301
157
3,300
6,120

456
437
453
314
165
119
709
280
789
594
518
191
5,025

622
517
578
199
115
168
589
155
424
383
658
393
4,801

5,181
4,394
4,682
2,284
1,151
1,167
5,882
2,125
5,702
5,022
5,435
4,315
47,340

5,263
3,917
5,473
2,369
1,161
1,252
6,328
2,025
6,570
4,592
6,616
2,693
48,259

Head Office
Total

90

2,244

490

1,032

3,856

3,580

74,136

15,930

12,838

11,672

114,576

100,900

Badocks Wood Academy
Greenfield Academy
Hareclive Academy
Perry Court Academy
Ilminster Avenue Academy
St Ursulas Academy
Regional
South West Region Total

Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Unrestricted
Funds
£’000
4,192
4,192

Restricted
General Funds
£’000
15,691
(15,034)
(47,987)
(47,330)

Restricted Fixed
Asset Funds
£’000
33
177,138

177,171

Total
Funds
£’000

33
177,138
19,883
(15,034)
(47,987)
134,033

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Unrestricted
Funds
£’000

21. Capital Commitments

3,338
3,338

Restricted
General Funds
£’000
12,145
(11,555)
(30,211)
(29,621)

Total 31
August
2019
£’000

Contracted for, but not provided for in the
financial statements.

391

Restricted Fixed
Asset Funds
£’000
87
162,213

162,300

Total
Funds
£’000

87
162,213
15,483
(11,555)
(30,211)
136,017

Total 31
August
2018
£’000
41

22. Commitments under operating leases

At 31 August 2019, the total of the academy trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was:
Total 31
August
2019
£’000
Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years
Amounts due after five years

257
310
7
573

Total 31
August
2018
£’000
237
102
339

During the year there was a transfer of £1.1M from revenue to capital funds
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23. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash inflow from operating
activities
Total 31
August
2019
£’000

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per
the statement of financial activities)
Adjusted for:
Less fixed assets transferred / donated in
Amortisation (note 13)
Depreciation (note 14)
Movement on WIP
Capital grants from DfE and other capital
Interest receivable (note 6)
(Profit) / Loss on disposals
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions
payable (note 30)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 30)
Add pension liability transferred in
Less pension liability transferred out
(Increase)/decrease in stocks
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities

24. Cash flows from financing activities

25. Cash flows from investing activities

26. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank
Surplus on local authority funds

(23,790)
57
8,559
13

(9,174)
60
8,579
-

(3,119)
(105)
4,415

(2,816)
(56)
-

3,391

4,073

886
2,669

985
1,681

(3)
(127)
3,479
5,171

17
(373)
1,578
2,535

28. Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities held on the balance sheet date.

29. Members Liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

Balance
31 August
2018
£’000
–

–

–

–

105
(2)
(4,123)
3,119
(901)

At
1 September
2018
£’000

There were no guarantees, letters of comfort or indemnities as at 31 August 2019.

(2,019)

Balance
31 August
2019
£’000

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of intangible fixed assets
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE/EFA
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities

Total 31
August
2018
£’000

8,846

Balance
31 August
2019
£’000

Repayment of borrowing
Cash inflows from new
borrowing
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities

27. Guarantees, letters of comfort and indemnities

Cash flows

£’000

10,168

4,269

10,168

4,269

Balance
31 August
2018
£’000
56
(26)
(3,743)
2,816
(897)

At
31 August
2019
£’000
14,437
14,437
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30. Pension and similar obligations



The assumed real rate of return is 3% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real
earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

The academy trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: The Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by the scheme managers listed below. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes.

The TPS valuation for 2016 determined an employer rate of 23.68% from September 2019. The next valuation of
the TPS will be as at March 2020, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will
be payable from 1 April 2023.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March
2016.

The pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £6,272,498 (2018 £5,503,008).

Scheme managers
Greater Manchester Pension Fund – Blackley Academy
Buckinghamshire County Council Pension Fund – Bourne End Academy
London Borough of Brent Pension Fund – Braintcroft Academy
Buckinghamshire County Council Pension Fund – Burnham Park Academy
Avon Pension Fund – Badocks Wood Academy
Buckinghamshire County Council Pension Fund – Chalfont Valley Academy
Lambeth Pension Scheme – City Heights Academy
London Borough of Brent Pension Fund – Crest Academy
Northamptonshire County Council Pension Fund – Danetre and Southbrook Learning Village Academy
Buckinghamshire County Council Pension Fund – Denham Green Academy
Avon Pension Fund – Greenfield Primary Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – Heartlands Academy
Avon Pension Fund – Hareclive Academy
Avon Pension Fund – Ilminster Avenue Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – Mansfield Green Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – Merritts Brook Primary Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – Nechells Primary Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – North Birmingham Academy
Greater Manchester Pension Fund – Oldham Academy
Northamptonshire County Council Pension Fund – Parker Academy
South Yorkshire Pension Fund – Parkwood Academy
South Yorkshire Pension Fund – Pathways Academy
Avon Pension Fund – Perry Court Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – Reedswood Primary Academy
Greater Manchester Pension Fund – Royton & Crompton Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – Shenley Academy
Avon Pension Fund – St Ursula's Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – West Walsall Academy
West Midlands Pension Fund – Willenhall Academy

Contributions amounting to £430,360 (2017:£352,620) were payable to the schemes at 31 August and are included
within creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January
2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although they
are able to opt out.
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis – these contributions along
with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are
dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public Service
Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by the
Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:





A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers Pensions Website.
Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an underfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The
academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2019 was £5,760,739 (2018: £4,967,483), of which
employer’s contributions totalled £4,530,467 (2018: £3,912,566) and employees’ contributions totalled £1,230,272
(2018: £1,054,917). The agreed contribution rates for future years range from 13.1% to 35% per cent for employers
and range from 5.5% to 12.5% per cent for employees.
Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Rate of increase salary
Rate of increase for pension in payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities
Inflation assumption (CPI)
Commutation of pensions to lump sums

31 August
2019 Range
(Top)
2.6%
2.3%
2.9%
2.3%
50.0%

31 August
2019 Range
(Bottom)
2.0%
2.1%
1.8%
2.0%
50.0%

31 August
2018 Range
(Top)
3.8%
2.4%
2.9%
2.4%
50.0%

31 August
2017 Range
(Bottom)
2.0%
2.2%
2.7%
2.1%
50.0%

E-ACT has not conducted a sensitivity analysis on the key assumptions used within the actuarial valuations. It is
deemed that the figures are subjective and are not referred to by wider government when actually calculating
funding for the schemes. The output of any sensitivity analysis is therefore of little help. E-ACT finance and trustees
continue to monitor LGPS pension rates and the valuations as necessary.
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring Today
Males
Females
Retiring in 20 years
Males
Females

31 August
2019 Range
(Top)

31 August
2019 Range
(Bottom)

31 August
2018 Range
(Top)

31 August
2017 Range
(Bottom

25.3
28.3

20.6
23.0

26.2
28.8

21.5
23.9

24.6
26.7

22.0
24.5

26.3
28.5

23.0
25.8

employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration
charge (currently 14.1%);
total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million, giving a notional past service
deficit of £14,900 million;
an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations.
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The academy trust’s share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cash
Other
Total Market Value of Assets

31. Related Party Transactions
2019
£000

2018
£000

38,119
9,212
5,197
2,789
6,630
61,947

31,063
7,249
4,138
3,042
4,485
49,977

32. Transfer of academies into the trust

The actual return on scheme assets was £3,565,000 (2017: £1,898,000)

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
AFH and with the academy trust’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected
and related party transactions. No related party transactions took place in the financial period.

On 1st September 2018 Bourne End Academy in Buckingham transferred from another multi-academy trust.
Badocks Wood Academy in Bristol and Royton & Crompton academy in Oldham joined the trust from their
respective local authorities.

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

(14,276)
(2,669)
1,536
(2,334)
(33)
(17,776)

(6,362)
(1,682)
1,187
(2,144)
(27)
(9,028)

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

Bourne End
Academy

Badocks Wood
Academy

80,188

80,520

£’000

£’000

6,648
1,536
1,204
11,322
(1,180)
3,107
7,307
109,934

6,362
2,144
1,009
(11,694)
(616)
(208)
2,671
80,188

12,150
-

Pensions
LGPS pension scheme assets
LGPS pension scheme liabilities
Net Assets / (Liabilities)

2019
£’000

2018
£’000

At 1 September

49,977

43,957

Interest cost
Administrative Expenses
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the defined pension liability)
Actuarial (gain)/Loss
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid
Plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
Transfer in from new academies
Academies transferring out
At 31 August

1,536
(33)
2,046
3,920
1,204
(1,180)
(161)
4,638
61,947

1,186
(27)
405
3,339
1,009
(616)
334
390
49,977

Current Service cost
Transfer in from new academy
Interest income
Interest cost
Benefit changes, gain/(loss) on curtailment and gain / (loss) on settlement
Admin expenses
Total amount recognised in the SOFA

Changes in the present value of defined benefits obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Current service cost
Interest cost
Employee contributions
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid
Losses or gains on curtailments
Business combinations
Transfer in from new academies
Academies transferring out
At 31 August

Changes in the fair value of academy trust’s share of scheme assets:

The transfers have been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and transferred
were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a
corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain of £21,121 in the statement of financial activities as a donation
coming into E-ACT.
The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets transferred and an analysis of their recognition
in the SOFA.

Tangible Fixed Assets
Leasehold land and buildings
Freehold land and buildings
Furniture and equipment
Computer Equipment

Royton &
Crompton
Academy
£’000

Total 31 August
2019

4,150
-

7,300
108
82

16,300
7,300
108
82

1,599
(3,146)

427
(734)

2,612
(3,427)

4,638
(7,307)

10,603

3,843

6,675

21,121

£’000

33. Events after the end of the reporting period
Following the 2018/19 balance sheet date, Burnham Park Academy closed and pupils and staff were offered places
at Bourne End Academy. The land and buildings will be transferred back to the local authority. Royton and
Crompton has had a partial demolition of their building and a partial new build.
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34. Income and expenditure

Total
31 August
2019

Income
GAG Funding
Other Govt Grants
Private Sector Funding
Other Income
Expenditure
Staffing Costs
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Apprenticeship Levy
Staff restructuring costs
Agency Staff
Other Costs
Premises and occupational costs
Educational Supplies and Services
ICT Costs
Other Expenses

Total Expenditure
Surplus / (Deficit) Exc. Capital

109,399
4,669
32
2,521
116,621
67,037
6,546
10,190
320
713
4,389
89,195
7,730
12,838
1,979
3,958

@EducationEACT

LinkedIn

26,505
115,700
922

The £24m of income received under restricted income, within the statement of financial activity, represents the
incoming value of the building assets transferred into E-ACT as part of the transfer in of 3 academies. This does not
represent cash coming into the trust.

www.e -act .org.uk

020 3176 3882

E-ACT
Unit 12.2.2 The Leather Market
1 1 - 1 3 We s t o n S t r e e t
London SE1 3ER

